
Page 1



Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



prepared by
Public Financial Management, Inc.

2121 Ponce de Leon Boulevard
Suite 510

Coral Gables, FL 33134
305-448-6992 (tel)
305-448-7131 (fax)

Town of Surfside, Florida 
Water, Sewer & Drainage Projects

Plan of Finance

Page 6

deastman
Typewritten Text
1J



2

PFM is the Nation’s Leading 
Financial and Investment 

Advisor to Public Agencies

PFM was founded in 1975 on the principle of providing sound independent
financial advice to state and local governments.  Today PFM is the nation’s 

leading advisory firm with 34 offices strategically located throughout the 
United States.

Introduction to PFM

PFM’s Mission Statement
“Our goal is to provide the highest quality advice to 

our clients so they are able to raise, invest and 
manage the resources they need in the most cost-

effective manner possible.”

Albany
Ann Arbor
Arlington
Atlanta
Austin
Boston

Charlotte
Chicago

Cleveland
Denver

Des Moines
Fargo

Harrisburg
Lafayette

Long Island
Los Angeles

Malvern
Memphis

Miami
Milwaukee

Minneapolis
Newport Beach

New York
Oakland
Orlando

Philadelphia
Phoenix

Pittsburgh
Princeton

San Antonio
San Francisco

Seattle
St. Louis
Tampa

Page 7



3

PFM’s Market Stature

PFM is Continually Ranks as a Leader in Public Finance

Rankings provide a shorthand method of measuring 
success; however  the length of service and level of 
satisfaction we provide is a better measure of true 

success.  PFM’s decade-long association with many of 
our clients is an affirmation of our ability to service their 
needs thoughtfully and efficiently. Whether calculated 

based on the number or the size of transactions, PFM is 
the most experienced player in the capital markets.

Page 8



4

PFM’s Florida Market Presence

PFM’s Florida practice includes 
every type of issuer, ensuring 

our clients that we are up to date 
on the most recent trends in 

public finance.

PFM has been the financial 
advisor for over 562 transactions 
in Florida amounting to over $35 
billion since 2000.  PFM is in the 

market so often that we have 
experience with and have helped 

develop numerous innovative 
advanced refunding techniques, 

such as forward swaps and 
forward settlement bonds and 

contingent bond purchase 
agreements.

PFM has a large and diverse 
Florida Presence

Higher Education
Broward County Educational 

Facilities Authority
Embry-Riddle Aeronautical 

University
Flagler College
Jacksonville University
New College
Nova Southeastern University
Ringling School of Art 

and Design
Rollins College
Saint Leo University
Stetson University
University of South Florida
University of West Florida

Cities
Alachua
Bay Harbor Island
Boca Raton
Boynton Beach
Brooksville
Clermont
Coral Gables
Crystal River
Dade City
Delray Beach
Doral
Flagler Beach
Fort Lauderdale
Gainesville
Golden Beach
Jacksonville
Jupiter
Key West
Lake Wales
Longboat Key
Melbourne
Melbourne Beach
Miami
New Port Richey
Ormond Beach
Oviedo
Panama City Beach
Plant City
Pompano Beach
St. Cloud
St. Petersburg
Sanibel
Sebring
Stuart
Sunrise
Surfside
Tallahassee
Tarpon Springs
Titusville
West Palm Beach
Winter Haven
Winter Garden
Winter Springs

Counties
Alachua
Brevard
Broward 
Clay 
Collier
Flagler
Glades
Hendry
Highlands
Hillsborough
Leon
Marion 
Miami‐Dade
Monroe 
Orange
Osceola
St. Johns 
St. Lucie
Volusia 

School 
Districts
Broward 
Citrus
Columbia
Flagler 
Hernando
Lake 
Manatee
Marion
Martin 
Miami‐Dade
Orange
Palm Beach 
Sarasota
Santa Rosa
Seminole 
Volusia 

Other Authorities
First Florida Governmental

Financing Commission
South Florida Water Management 

District
Sunshine State Governmental

Financing Commission
Tampa Bay Water

Special Districts
Alachua Library District
Blueprint 2000
Sun ‘n Lake of Sebring Improvement District

Healthcare
Health Central
Jackson Health System
North Broward Hospital District
Orange County Health Facilities 

Authority 

Transportation
Central Florida Regional

Transportation Authority
Florida High Speed Rail 

Authority
Jacksonville Aviation Authority
Jacksonville Seaport Authority
Jacksonville Transportation Authority
Tampa Port Authority

Utilities
Bonita Springs Utilities
Gainesville Regional Utilities
Jacksonville Electric

Authority
Orlando Utilities Commission

PFM’s Florida Clients

The State of 
Florida
Florida Department of 
Transportation

Division of Bond Finance

Page 9



Introduction to Bryant Miller Olive P.A.

Bryant Miller Olive started as a public finance firm in 1970.  
We are the first existing Florida law firm to be listed in the Red 
Book.

We have a history and a legacy in public finance and are 
known for completing complex transactions.

Bryant Miller Olive was founded by former Governor C. 
Farris Bryant, Wilton R. Miller, W. Robert Olive and 
Benjamin H. Dickens.

5Page 10



About the Firm

Bryant Miller Olive has expanded into the following 
specialty areas:

Public Policy Group 
Public Private Partnership 
Real Property
State and Local Government
Governmental Consulting 
Affordable Housing 
Energy & Utility
Corporate Trust & Default 
Land Use
Labor & Employment
Government Procurement
Litigation
Environment & Climate Change 

6Page 11



Bond Counsel Experience

Served as Bond Counsel, Disclosure Counsel, Underwriter’s Counsel,
Special Counsel or Swap Counsel on more than 1,000 financings
aggregating over $50 billion in principal amount of debt.

With 22 public finance attorneys, Bryant Miller Olive has more Florida-based
bond attorneys than most major law firms.

Bryant Miller Olive has two public finance attorneys which concentrate their
practices in the tax area and we do not subcontract with other firms for tax
law expertise.

We are under continuing contract with over 70 governmental entities.

7Page 12



Debt Issuance Process Flow Chart

8Page 13



Structuring the Deal

Decide on the scope of the project and the cost.

Hold an initial meeting with the Financial Advisor, Engineer, the Town
Attorney and Bond Counsel to discuss the following:

project and its viability
structuring the deal
purpose of the borrowing
use of the proceeds
timing
pending litigation 
other pertinent issues

9Page 14



Overview of Financing Options –
Publicly Offered Bonds

Type of Financing Pros Cons

Publicly Offered Bond • Can issue bonds out to 30-years
• Very efficient for longer term 

transactions – 30 years (rates fixed 
for entire term)

• Can accommodate innovative and 
creative financial solutions beneficial 
to the issuer

• Risk of future changes in tax laws 
passed in investors (i.e., no “gross 
up” language)

• Sold either competitively or 
negotiated

• Flexible call features (10 year par 
call is standard)

• Need ratings or credit enhancement
• Higher costs of issuance
• Greater administrative requirements
• Highest cost of issuance
• Debt rating and/or credit enhancement 

(bond insurance) may be required.  
Less so in today’s market versus pre-
credit crisis.

• Funding of Debt Service Reserve 
Fund required for most credits

• Continuing disclosure required after 
bonds are sold

• Initial disclosure requirements (official 
statement) can be burdensome

10Page 15



Overview of Financing Options –
Bank Loan

Type of Financing Pros Cons

Bank Loan • Does not require that transaction be 
rated or insured

• No offering documents or registration 
required

• Banks usually do not require a Debt 
Service Reserve Fund 

• Disclosure usually limited to receipt 
of CAFR and budget (no official 
statement)

• Minimal cost of issuance

• The purchase of tax-exempt loans 
by non-bank subsidiaries and 
affiliates of commercial banks debt 
has resulted in more efficient 
“nonbank qualified” pricing (Leasing 
Corporation)

• Typically longest allowable term is15-
20 years

• Interest rate subject to increase if tax 
laws change or loan is deemed 
taxable in the future

• Risk of future tax law changes retained 
by the issuer.  Bank loans usually 
contain interest rate “gross up” 
language; providing the bank the right 
to increase the loan rate should tax 
law changes negatively impact the 
bank’s after tax yield

• Term limited to 20 years and some 
banks will not provide a fixed rate for 
the entire term.  Instead, the bank 
would have a “put” option during the 
term of the loan (5 , 10, or 15 years).  
This gives the bank the option to “put” 
the loan back to the issuer and force 
them to refinance at the then current 
market rates.

11Page 16



Financing Options – Estimated Rates

Below is a summary of the estimated rates and Annual Debt Service on a $16MM
transaction. It compares publicly offered bonds and privately placed bank loans. All
numbers are estimates and are for discussion purposes only.

Type of Financing 15-Year 20-Year

Privately Placed Bank 
Loan (Tax-Exempt)

• TIC = 4.82%
• All-In TIC = 4.89%
• Avg. Annual DS = $1,522,195

• TIC = 5.11%
• All-In TIC = 5.17%
• Avg. Annual DS = $1,295,734

Publically Offered Bond 
Issue (Tax-Exempt)

• TIC = 4.96%
• All-In TIC = 5.15%
• Avg. Annual DS = $1,522,783

• TIC = 5.49%
• All-In TIC = 5.65%
• Avg. Annual DS = $1,325,225

12Page 17



Ordinance

To authorize the Bonds, the Town will need to do the following:

enact an ordinance authorizing the issuance and providing details of the bonds

enactment will require two readings of the ordinance with a public hearing

ordinance will need to be advertised in a newspaper or general circulation in the
municipality at least 10 days prior to second reading

adopt a resolution containing the provisions requested by the Bank and details of the
transaction

13Page 18



Closing

After the ordinance has been enacted and the resolution adopted:

Bond Counsel will circulate drafts of the proposed closing documents

Bond Counsel, Bank’s Counsel and the Town Attorney will receive all applicable
documentation and determine that the bonds are valid in State of Florida

pre-closing is scheduled the day prior to the actual “closing date”

Bond Counsel will hold all the documents in escrow until the day of closing when
they will be released upon Bond Counsel’s satisfaction that everything that is
required to happen, has happened according to Florida law.

On the day of the closing, the Bank will wire the funds into the appropriate accounts
in accordance with the Closing Memorandum

When Bond Counsel has official notification that all funds have been wired and
received by the City, they will declare the transaction officially closed.

14Page 19



Transaction Management
Develop Financing Timetable (see key dates below)
Procure bank loan
Draft and Review Financing Documents
Finalize Financing Documents
Final Council Approval for Financing
Establish Closing Date
Close Financing/Receive Project Funds

Tentative Financing Schedule – Key Milestones
February 2011: Draft Bank Loan RFP; prepare attachments
March 1, 2011: Circulate Request for Proposals to Loan Providers
March 2011: Town Council Meeting –

1st Ordinance Reading
April 1, 2011: Received Bank Proposals; Evaluate Responses
April 2011: Town Council Meeting –

2nd Ordinance Reading, Approve Loan Documents
May 1, 2011: Close Financing

15Page 20



 
Town of Surfside 

Town Commission Meeting 
December 14, 2010  

 7 p.m.  
Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 

Surfside, FL  33154 
 

MINUTES 
1. Opening     

A. Call to Order:  Mayor Daniel Dietch called the meeting to order at 7:05 pm. 
 

B. Roll Call of Members:  Town Clerk Debra Eastman called the roll and the following 
members of the Commission were present upon roll call:  Commissioner Michael 
Karukin, Commissioner Edward Kopelman, Commissioner Marta Olchyk, Vice 
Mayor Joe Graubart and Mayor Daniel Dietch. 
 

C. Pledge of Allegiance:  Police Chief David Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

D. Mayor and Commission Remarks – Mayor Daniel Dietch thanked Town Manager 
Roger Carlton and the Town staff for coming together with so many initiatives for the 
town.  He also thanked the Planning and Zoning and Design Review Boards for their 
work on the challenges of the zoning codes.  The Mayor also thanked the residents of 
the Town of Surfside for all their suggestions and involvement in the town. 
 

E. Agenda and Order of Business Additions, deletions and linkages – Vice Mayor Joe 
Graubart requested to link agenda items 9(C) and 9(L), which relates to making 
information more available to the public.  Town Manager Roger Carlton noted that 
item 9 (C) is done and briefly discussed that item 9(L) relates to the requirement for 
the town to post 5 years worth of budgets and audits for residents to review. 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman briefly discussed the changes to the agenda that resulted 
in the amended agenda. 
 

F. Community Notes – Mayor Daniel Dietch spoke about the winter camp and the 
second Surfside Police Department blood drive.  The Mayor also thanked Duncan 
Tavares for the work done to clean out the library.  The Mayor also noted to residents 
that there are coupons for residents to claim library books in the Gazette and on the 
website.  Vice Mayor Graubart also added that the K-8 Center chorus will be 
performing downtown on December 15th and December 16th.  He further reminded 
the residents about the Surfside Business Association and the Tourist Board holiday 
lights competition.  He also added that business list is in production. 
 

G. Special Recognition – Assistant Chief John DiCenso – Chief David Allen 
 

Page 21

deastman
Typewritten Text
3A



 
  

Chief David Allen reminded the residents about the holiday toy collection drive in the 
Police Department. 
 
Chief Allen was presented Assistant Chief John DiCenso a plaque for taking the lead 
and following through on town wide programs for the parking pay stations.  Assistant 
Chief John DiCenso recognized Sgt. William, Elinor Joseph, the three parking 
enforcement officers and the weekend volunteers for their assistance.  Assistant Chief 
DiCenso also noted that the police department will continue improvements in the 
parking lots. 
 

H. Legislative Update – Fausto Gomez, Town Lobbyist 
Town Lobbyist Fausto Gomez spoke about the changing environment in Tallahassee.  
He also noted that the coming year will see reapportionment and all these delegates 
will have to run again in districts that they do not currently represent with the 
approval of amendment 5 and 6.   
 
Mr. Gomez noted that he has prepared draft items for the commission to consider 
along with a set of legislative principles.   
 

 I.  Presentation Traffic Calming on Collins and Harding Avenues – Luis Ajamil, 
      Bermello Ajamil   
 

Town Manager Roger Carlton spoke about the paving that will be done on Collins 
and Harding that will be a transformational opportunity.  He added that he will be 
meeting with FDOT to talk about the intersection where kids will be crossing from 
the new community center to see what can be done to make it safer. 
 
Mr. Bermello Ajamil made a presentation on thoroughfares in downtown area.  He 
noted that there is a way to leverage traffic.  
 
Mr. Carlton expressed to the commission that there is no reason why Collins and 
Harding cannot be much better.  He mentioned that he will be working closely with 
FDOT to achieve more innovative things and make that part of town more pedestrian-
friendly. 

 
I. Census Final Report – Barbara Cohen 

Ms. Barbara Cohen reported that 74% of US households filled out and returned the 
census.  She added that in Miami-Dade County 72% of households filled out and 
returned the census and that 63% of Surfside residents filled out and returned the 
census. 
 

2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings 
 

3. Consent Agenda  
All items on the consent agenda are considered routine or status reports by the Town 
Commission and will be approved by one motion.  Any Commission member may request, 

Page 22



 
  

Minutes

during item 1E Agenda and Order of Business, that an item be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and discussed separately. 
 
Recommended Motion:  To approve all consent agenda items as presented below. 
 
A.  - 

 September 14, 2010 First Budget Hearing 
 September 22, 2010 Second Budget Hearing 
 September 22, 2010 Special Commission Meeting 
 September 27, 2010 Executive Session 
 November 4, 2010   Special Commission Meeting with Planning and 

          Zoning Board 
     November 9, 2010   Regular Commission Meeting 
 

B. Monthly Budget to Actual Summary as of September 30, 2010 - Martin 
Sherwood, Finance Support Services Department Head  

C.   Town Manager’s Report- “Points of Light”  
D.   Town Attorney’s Report 
E.    Projects Progress Report – Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc.  
F.    Resolution Certifying Charter Amendment Election Results from November 2, 
        2010 Election   
G.    Administrative Grievance Policy on Non-Bargaining Unit Employees  
H.    Communications Ad Hoc Committee Progress Report – Commissioner  

           Michael Karukin    
I.     Code Enforcement Ad Hoc Committee Progress Report – Paul Gioia, Building 
        Official   
J.     Proclamation – Janice Thomas, Ruth K. Broad Bay Harbor K-8  
K.    Code Enforcement Update Report – Michael Garcia, Code Enforcement Officer 

 L.    Community Center Concession Report – Tim Milian, Parks and Recreation 
        Director   
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the consent agenda.  Commissioner 
Kopelman seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 

 
4.  Ordinances  

A. Second Readings (Ordinances and Public Hearing)   

1.  Off-Street Parking Ordinance – Shelley Eichner, Town Planner  
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90, DIVISION 1. OFF-
STREET PARKING, SECTION 90-82 “DESIGN STANDARDS” OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO CLARIFY THE 
STANDARDS USED FOR VEHICULAR QUEUING, ACCESS TO STATE 
ROADWAYS; AND ON-SITE CIRCULATION; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS 
OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH;   AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Page 23



 
  

 
[This Ordinance clarifies the standards utilized by Town Staff to review site 
plans for onsite and offsite vehicular circulation; it restates Miami-Dade and 
FDOT standards as well as giving Staff the flexibility to impose stricter 
standards when County standards do not result in adequate queuing and 
circulation space.]  
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the Ordinance by title into the record. 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to adopt the ordinance on second reading.  
Commissioner Kopelman seconded the motion. 
 
Mayor Dietch opened the public hearing.  Being that no residents wished to speak, the 
Mayor closed the public hearing. 
 
Upon roll call, the motion carried 4-1 with Vice Mayor Graubart voting in opposition. 
 

   B.  First Readings Ordinances  
 

1.  Commercial Vehicle Ordinance – Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney  
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN 
OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 74 AND 
SPECIFICALLY SECTION 74-1 “COMMERCIAL VEHICLES” 
CREATING SECTION 74-2 “USE OF COMMERCIAL VEHICLES”   
AND SECTION 74-3 “ISSUANCE OF COMMERCIAL VEHICLE 
PARKING PERMIT” OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH;   AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

[This Ordinance regulates the parking of commercial vehicles on residential 
streets, allowing one commercial vehicle to be parked in a residential driveway 
provided the resident has obtained a commercial vehicle parking permit from 
the Town and delineating issuance and revocation procedures.] 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the ordinance by title into the record. 
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to approve the ordinance on first reading.  
Commissioner Olchyk seconded the motion. 
 
Town Manager Roger Carlton noted that the direction from the commission was to 
find a balance between people with commercial vehicles used to make a living.  He 
added that many folks registered complaints about the aesthetics.  Mr. Carlton then 
explained the process to register a vehicle and noted that only one vehicle can be 
registered.  He further added that this vehicle must be parked in the driveway and not 
on the street. 

Page 24



 
  

 
Alan Gourme stated that he attended the code enforcement meetings.  He stated that 
the ordinance is well thought out and noted that he agrees with it. 
 
Peter Glynn inquired if a person who brought their work truck home for the night 
would get a ticket.  Mr. Carlton stated that if the person registers the car and parks it 
in the driveway, he will not have a problem.  He added that the weight limit for the 
vehicle is one ton. Mr. Glynn expressed concern about moving trucks.  Mr. Carlton 
stated that if the commission wants an exception he can bring back an amendment. 
 
Ken Arnold inquired about the current code.  Mayor Dietch noted that this goes 
beyond the current code and added that this helps with enforcement issue.   

 
Upon roll call the motion to approve carried 4-1 with Vice Mayor Graubart voting in 
opposition. 
 
2.  Amend Town Code to add Psychic Reading and Consultation As a Permitted  
Use – Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney  
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90 AND SPECIFICALLY 
SECTION 90-41 “REGULATED USES” OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ADD “PSYCHIC READING AND 
CONSULTATION” AS PERMITTED USE; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION 
IN THE CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH;   AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

          
[Per the Settlement Agreement approved at the last Commission meeting, we 
amend the code to allow psychic reading and consultation as a permitted use in 
SD-B40 (Downtown Business) District as a second floor use and subject to all 
other regulations.] 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the ordinance by title into the record. 
 
Attorney Lynn Dannheisser explained the amendment.  Mayor Dietch passed the 
gavel to make the motion. 
 
Mayor Dietch made a motion to approve the ordinance.  Commissioner Olchyk 
seconded the motion.  The motion carried three to two with Commissioner Kopelman 
and Vice Mayor Graubart voting in opposition. 
 
3.  Change in Town Commission Rules of Procedure – Commissioner Marta 
Olchyk 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING RULE 4.01 OF ARTICLE VI. “RULES 
OF PROCEDURE FOR TOWN MEETINGS”; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 

Page 25



 
  

PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the ordinance by title into the record. 
 
Commissioner Olchyk made a motion to approve the ordinance.  Vice Mayor 
Graubart seconded the motion. 
 
Manager Carlton explained the ordinance.  Commissioner Olchyk stated that the 
change will make for more manageable and brief meetings.  She added that this will 
give people an incentive to watch or attend the meetings and know they will be 
efficient and brief.  She added that she does not want the meetings extended after 11 
pm. 
 
Vice Mayor Graubart expressed concern.  He noted that the agendas are long, but can 
perhaps be shortened.  Commissioner Kopelman agreed with the Vice Mayor.  Vice 
Mayor Graubart asked that the agendas be kept short.  Manager Carlton mentioned 
that this is just a recommendation from the attorney, the manager and the clerk.  He 
added that an emergency provision would be needed for the meetings to be limited to 
11 pm. 
 
Upon roll call, the motion failed to carry with Commissioner Olchyk casting the sole 
vote in favor. 
 

       5.  Resolutions and Proclamations 

Employment Agreement for Town Manager - Mayor Daniel Dietch (Page 81-98) 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, APPROVING AN EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN TOWN MANAGER, ROGER M. CARLTON AND THE TOWN; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the resolution by title into the record. 
 
Commissioner Kopelman moved to approve the resolution.  Commissioner Karukin 
seconded the motion. 
 
Mayor Dietch explained the process of meeting and recommending a town manager.  He 
noted that now he is seeking the acceptance of his contract. 
 
Vice Mayor Graubart spoke about the former town manager’s agreement.  He noted that 
this agreement is comparable.  He also spoke about the date of evaluation.  He added that 
it was done in July and now 15 days prior to yearly contract.  Mayor Dietch noted that it 
can be done on or before anniversary date.  Vice Mayor Graubart also noted that the 
conflict of interest prohibition that was in the previous contract is not in this new one. 
 
 

Page 26



 
  

Vice Mayor Graubart stated that there might be philosophical differences regarding bond 
issues, garages and a view of Surfside that Mr. Carlton might not share. 
 
Commissioner Olchyk mentioned that she is impressed with Mr. Carlton and added that 
he has done marvelously dealing with her.  She spoke about lowering Town expenses as 
being a priority and asked the manager to look into the budget to see how expenses can 
be diminished.  Commissioner Olchyk also stated that she would have preferred a one 
year contract with a possible extension of a second year. 
 
Commissioner Kopelman mentioned that his only comparison is with the former Town 
Manager.  He added that he is impressed, pleased and excited about the future with the 
current town manager and noted that he is in favor of the contract. 
 
Commissioner Karukin stated that they should hire the expert and thanked Mr. Carlton 
and Attorney Dannheisser for helping deal with items. 
 
Upon roll call the motion to approve the resolution carried 4-1 with Vice Mayor Graubart 
voting in opposition. 
 
 
B.  Keep America Beautiful Report – Tim Milian, Parks and Recreation Director 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO COMPLETE THE 
TRAINING AND CERTIFICATION TO BECOME AN AFFILIATE OF “KEEP 
AMERICA BEAUTIFUL” AND TO BE DESIGNATED AS “KEEP SURFSIDE 
BEAUTIFUL” AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the resolution by title into the record. 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the resolution.  Vice Mayor Graubart 
seconded the motion. 
 
Town Manager Roger Carlton explained that the program gives guidance in beautifying 
the community.  He stated that it has upfront and annual fees, but added that it is a good 
thing to become part of national network because the town can gain a lot of knowledge 
on what other people do.  He mentioned that he has been working closely with the 
beautification committee on this. 
 
Commissioner Olchyk stated that she has no problem with this, but does have a problem 
with the beautification on the beach.  She added that the town needs to give it more 
importance since it is our biggest resource.  She suggested that the waste baskets be 
changed.  She noted that the town needs to spend money to do this and that can cost 
approximately $2,000.00.  Commissioner Olchyk added that she has been told that Bay 
Harbor, Bal Harbor and Sunny Isles have purchased their own baskets.  She inquired why 
it is easy to spend money on beautification and not spend money on the beach containers.  
Town Manager Roger Carlton expressed agreement with Commissioner Olchyk and 
stated that he had breakfast with the county official who oversees the beaches. Manager 

Page 27



 
  

Carlton mentioned that if the town receives a fair share of baskets from the county, it will 
replace the rest.  He noted that he will bring a proposal to the commission for the new 
baskets. 
 
The motion to approve the resolution carried unanimously.  
 
C.  Parking Trust Fees – Roger M. Carlton, Interim Town Manager           
Attorney Lynn Dannheisser explained that the Commission passed a parking trust 
ordinance.  She spoke about the shortage of parking in certain areas of town and added 
that there has not been a methodical way  to deal with fulfillment of parking requirements 
in the downtown district.  She noted that the new ordinance allows for the town to create 
a special fund into which new approvals can satisfy parking requirements by paying a fee 
to be used to create a garage for additional parking.  Ms. Dannheisser mentioned that the 
ordinance allows the Manager to set by Resolution the amount of the contribution. 

 
Lou Cohen spoke before the Commission and suggested that the town give businesses tax 
incentives to build garages.  He added that he was unable to find a space to park today. 
 
The motion to approve carried 4-1 with Vice Mayor Graubart voting in opposition. 
 
*D.  Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace – Roger M. Carlton, Interim Town Manager 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION FOR THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, APPROVING REVISED ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 
NUMBER 102, DRUG AND ALCOHOL FREE WORKPLACE AND SUBSTANCE 
ABUSE TESTING PROCEDURES; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the resolution by title into the record. 
 
Vice Mayor Graubart made a motion to approve the resolution.  Commissioner Olchyk 
seconded the motion. 
 
Town Manager Roger Carlton mentioned that this resolution will save approximately 
$8,000 per year by implementing the new regulations. 
 
Upon roll call, the motion carried unanimously. 
 

 E.  Code Enforcement Officers – Roger M. Carlton, Interim Town Manager  
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO APPOINT 
CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS FOR THE TOWN WHO MAY INCLUDE 
LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the resolution by title into the record. 
 
Town Manager Roger Carlton stated that this resolution relates to commercial vehicles, for 
example, but other cases as well.  He added that this results from limitatiempowers police in 
limited situations.  He added that the police will be used as back up. 

Page 28



 
  

Vice Mayor Graubart asked Chief Allen if other communities do this.  Chief Allen noted that 
while Miami Beach does not do this because they have a large code enforcement department, Bal 
Harbor does this.   

Mayor Dietch inquired if the town has the equipment necessary to enforce noise limits after 
hours.  Chief Allen responded that the police can do this.   

Building and Zoning director Paul Gioia stated that he attended 3 roll call training and stressed 
quality of life type problems.   

Vice Mayor Graubart stated that he wants to amend the resolution to sunset in two years as a trial.   

Commissioner Karukin stated that he is not in favor of the resolution as written and added that it 
can use officers to enforce any code, even if they have a policy.    

Vice Mayor Graubart inquired if the provisions can be adopted as amended and made to sunset by 
next commission.  Town Manager Roger  Carlton suggested that the commission require 
quarterly reports on agenda and if they are dissatisfied they can rescind the resolution by motion.  
He further mentioned that a list with 7 items be included as an amendment that defines items for 
police.   

Vice Mayor Graubart recommends that the resolution sunset February, 2012.   Commissioner 
Karukin agreed. 

Attorney Lynn Dannheisser read the amendment to the resolution to Amend section 2, requiring 
authorization and requiring for an effective date to sunset at the Commission meeting February 
2012.   

Motion as amended and acceptable to seconder Commissioner Karukin. 

Lou Cohen spoke before the commission and mentioned that he agrees with the amendment, but 
added that the wording is vague.  He added that it needs a distinction between civil disobedience 
and code enforcement. 

Commissioner Karukin requested to defer the item. Vice Mayor Graubart withdrew his motion. 

Vice Mayor Graubart amended his motion to add that the resolution sunset February 2012 and 
specify authority of officers and come before the Commission next time.  Commissioner 
Kopelman seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the motion carried. 

F.  Retainer Agreement with Weiss Serota Helfman Pastoriza Cole and Boniske, 
P.A. – Lynn Dannhessier, Town Attorney 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION FOR THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH WEISS SEROTA 
HELFMAN PASTORIZA COLE & BONISKE, P.A. TO REPRESENT THE 
TOWN IN THE CASE CAPTIONED YOUNG ISRAEL OF BAL HARBOUR, INC. 
V. TOWN OF SURFSIDE CASE NO. 10-CV-24392 IN THE UNITED STATES 
DISTRICT COURT FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT FLORIDA; PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Page 29



 
  

Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the resolution by title into the record. 
 
Attorney Lynn Dannheisser stated that the town was served by Young Israel and added 
that they need to respond in 20 days.  She suggests Weiss, Serota, Helfman, Pastoriza, 
Cole and Boniske because of their historical involvement in the process and will come 
back with other issues not addressed by Weiss, Serota, Helfman, Pastoriza, Cole and 
Boniske. 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the resolution.  Commissioner 
Kopelman seconded the motion. 

 
Mark Blumstein stated that he was involved as a representative for the commission the 
first time.  He stated that litigation of this matter can cost a million dollars or more.  He 
did not know if the Manager had inquired of any other firm or sought enlargement of 
time.   
 
Vice Mayor Graubart explained that Weiss, Serota, Helfman, Pastoriza, Cole and 
Boniske were involved the first time and helped with RLUIPA Map.  Attorney Lynn 
Dannheisser added that they have experience and that is why she is recommending them.   
 
The motion carried 4-1 with Vice Mayor Graubart voting in opposition. 
 
Town Attorney Lynn Dannheisser requested an Executive Session to secure advice 
concerning Young Israel vs. Surfside case number in the US District Court for Southern 
District.  She suggested that it be approximately one hour outside counsel in attendance.    
She suggested January 6th at 6:30 pm. 
 
All were in favor. 
 
 

      6.  Good and Welfare  
Public comments for subjects or items not on the agenda.  Public comment on agenda 
items will be allowed when agenda item is discussed by the Commission. 
 

7. Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports 
Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports have been moved to the Consent Agenda –  
 Item 3.   
 All items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine or status reports by the Town 
 Commission and will be approved by one motion.  Any Commission member may 
 request, during item 1E Agenda and Order of Business, that an item be removed from  
the consent agenda and discussed separately. 

      8.  Unfinished Business and New Business  
January, 2011 Town Commission Meeting Date Change – Debra Eastman, Town Clerk 
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to approve changing the January 11, 2011 
Town Commission Meeting to January 18, 2011.  Commissioner Karukin seconded the 
motion.  The motion carried unanimously. 

Page 30



 
  

 
      9.  Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications  

A.  Amendments to Agenda Process to Increase Efficiency – Roger M. Carlton,  
        Interim Town Manager, Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney and Debra Eastman, 
        Town Clerk   
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to accept the report.  Commissioner Karukin 
seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 
 
B.  Beautification Committee Appointment, Adam Markow – Commissioner 
        Michael Karukin 
 
The appointment was so acknowledged. 
 
C.  Accounts Payable on Website – Vice Mayor Joe Graubart  
As the Manager mentioned in the commencement of the meeting, this item is done.  Vice 
Mayor Graubart mentioned that he is hoping to expand the website during election time 
and cited campaign finance reporting.   
 
Commissioner Karukin mentioned that the website committee has already adopted it as a 
recommendation. 
 
D.  Garbage Collection Reduction of One Day Per Week – Commissioner Marta 
        Olchyk   
Commissioner Olchyk stated that she does not want the garbage to be picked up on 
Fridays and added that she would like to use the crew to clean up the beach while being 
supervised.  Mayor Dietch stated that he would like to see an analysis of what kind of 
impact this will have.   
 
Town Manager Roger Carlton noted that these are two items and promised the report for 
January.  He will discuss the pros and cons of one less collection and a second broad base 
report on the beach. 

 
E.  Livable Streets and Pedestrian Safety – Roger M. Carlton, Interim Town Manager 
This item is tied to Bermello Ajamil’s presentation earlier in the evening.  Town Manager 
Roger Carlton expressed safety concerns as community center opens.  He noted that the 
crossing needs to be made safer.  He added that he will make a more global report soon. 
 
F.  Countrywide Real Estate Facts and Trends – Roger M. Carlton, Interim Town        
Manager   
Town Manager Roger Carlton mentioned that he will get an exact report for Surfside.  He 
also directed the commission to the financial report and noted that the town finished the 
year with additional money generated in almost every fund.  He asked to save money to 
smooth the impact on the millage rate.  Town Manager Roger Carlton further stated that 
he would like to start the budget process next month and would also like to address policy 
alternatives. 
 

Page 31



 
  

G.  Ensuring the Survival of the Surfside Post Office – Roger M. Carlton, Interim 
        Town Manager   
Manager Carlton reported that the Surfside Post Office will stop Saturday deliveries.  He 
also noted that he wants to work with the Congressional Delegation to keep the post 
office open.  
 
H.  Beach Maintenance Report – Tim Milian, Parks and Recreation Director   
Town Manager Roger Carlton recommended attention to detail and to ensure that the 
agencies all work together.   
 
I.   Environment Florida Community Solar Letter – Mayor Daniel Dietch and Vice 
        Mayor Joe Graubart   
Mayor Dietch and Vice Mayor Graubart presented the item asking to join Environment 
Florida to sign onto a letter to keep rebates going for solar initiatives.   
 
Vice Mayor Graubart made a motion to approve the item.  Commissioner Karukin 
seconded the motion.  All were in favor. 
 
J.  AECOM Modification Number 4 Design and Permit Additional Space for 

             Community Center – Roger M. Carlton, Interim Town Manager  
Town Manager Roger Carlton gave preliminary direction to go forward with the 
additional space.  Mr. Paul Gioia mentioned that he estimated the prices and the prices 
from AECOM are fair and came in under his estimate. 
 
Commissioner Karukin moved to accept amendment number 4 from AECOM.  
Commissioner Kopelman seconded the motion.   

 
All were in favor and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
K. West Construction, Inc. Change Order #2 – Approval to construct 1,000 sf of 
        additional multipurpose room space at the Community Center – Roger M. 
        Carlton, Interim Town Manager  
Town Manager Roger Carlton mentioned that he would like authority on this item. 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the item.  Commissioner Olchyk 
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 
  L.  Resolution Sponsored by County Commissioner Carlos Jimenez - Roger M. 
        Carlton, Interim Town Manager  
Town Manager Roger Carlton will report back next month on this item. 
 

              M. Photo/Film Permit Program – Roger M. Carlton, Interim Town Manager  
Town Manager Roger Carlton spoke about the photo shoot policy.  He asked if the town 
should try to generate more activity.   

 
Peter Glynn spoke in favor of this item and suggested a multi-tier permit fee structure to 
generate $30,000 to $50,000 per year.  He mentioned that he interviewed people on 
Biscayne Drive and they all want to see films being made to make money.   

Page 32



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

December 14, 2010 
 
  

13 
  

 

 
Vice Mayor Graubart expressed concern about the benefits to the residents.  Mr. Glynn 
suggested that the town make the permit fees high enough, rent parking spaces and hire 
police officers. 

 
Town Manager Roger Carlton mentioned that if the Town would like to look at the Film 
Commissioner idea, he will review it and come back with a more detailed ordinance. 

 
Mayor Dietch noted that he will be out of town and needs a volunteer for the Planning 
and Zoning Board on Thursday.  Vice Mayor Graubart will take his place. 
 

10. Adjournment  

The meeting adjourned at 10:25 pm. 

 

 

       Accepted this ____day of _____, 2011 
 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Debra E. Eastman, MMC 
Town Clerk 

Page 33



Page 34

deastman
Typewritten Text
3B



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39

deastman
Typewritten Text
3D



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



 

 
 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE 
PROJECTS PROGRESS REPORT 

FEBRUARY, 2011 
 
 

1. Community Center – The shoring for the roof slab pour has been removed.  
Installation of the glass curtain wall has begun.  Framing of the interior walls, 
interior plumbing, and interior electric have also all begun.  The excavation and 
rough plumbing of both pools is now complete.  The Activity Pool has been 
poured and is now being finished for tile installation.  The structural steel for the 
Main Pool is now being installed. 
 

2. Planning and Community Development – Staff prepared the ordinance text for 
the zoning changes resulting from the December 9, 2010 Joint Meeting. This was 
presented to the Planning and Zoning Board on January 27, 2011 and the Town 
Commission on February 8, 2011. Staff also prepared ordinances relating to 
changes for boats and curb cuts on lots resulting from the code hearing in 
August.  Planning staff continues to answer general zoning calls and emails from 
the public and to review building permits for conformance with the zoning code. 
 

3. Website, Information Technology, TV Broadcasts - The Town has ordered 
three network switches to replace the switches currently installed that belong to 
Calvin, Giordano & Associates (CGA). The IT Department investigated the 
possibility of adding AT&T’s U-Verse service to the broadcast feed and we are 
continuing to work with the Town Manager to determine the cost and possibility 
for making the town channel available for U-Verse broadcast. The 
Communications Committee is meeting with the Town Clerk to develop new 
ideas for the website and the electronic communication used by the Town. IT 
staff is gathering quotes for wireless lapel microphones for the commissioners to 
use for meetings, as instructed by the Town Clerk. The RFP for the Voice Over 
Internet Protocol (phone replacement) as funded in the FY 10/11 budget has been 
completed and was advertised on the website in January, 2011. The IT 
Department will begin working on replacing the existing e-mail records system 
with an in-house solution this month. 

 
 

Page 95

deastman
Typewritten Text
3G



 
4. Public Utilities / Engineering – 

 
Stormwater System 

 
Construction plans and specifications – 100% complete.   
 
Permits – All permits obtained except contractor DERM permit and contractor FDEP well permit. 
 
Construction schedule – Advertisement goal of February 2011 with anticipated construction duration 
goal of 15 months.  CGA and staff are studying the option of an “early bonus system” to achieve this 
ambitious schedule. 
 
Grant status -  FDEP $873,500      – In place 
  FDEP $125,000      – In place 

FDEP $100,000      – In place 
  FDEP $2,949,550      – In process. 
  SFWMD $570,000       – In process 
 
Sanitary Sewer Collection System 
 
Construction plans and specifications – 95% complete for collection system upgrades and sewage lift 
station refurbishment.   
 
Permits – Permit waiver request was approved, letter to be issued this week. 
 
Construction schedule – Advertisement goal of February 2011 with anticipated construction duration 
goal of 15 months.  CGA and staff are studying the option of an “early bonus system” to achieve this 
ambitious schedule. 
 
 
Water Distribution System 
 
Construction plans and specifications – 95% complete.   
 
Permits – WASD and HRS approval.  Waiting for final sign off from DERM. 
 
Construction schedule – Advertisement goal of February 2011 with anticipated construction duration 
goal of 15 months.  CGA and staff are studying the option of an “early bonus system” to achieve this 
ambitious schedule. 
 

Grant status -  Building Better Community Bonds $829,000  – In place 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 96



Page 3 
Town of Surfside 

Projects Progress Report 
 
Stormwater Master Maintenance  
 
The stormwater drainage system is being cleaned and maintained on a yearly basis as required by the 
National Pollution Discharge Elimination System Permit.  Repairs and replacement program coincide 
with the Florida Department of Environmental Protection Stormwater project and grants  

 
Florida Department of Transportation Local Agency Program 
 
CGA assisted the Town with the Florida Department of Transportation Local Agency Program 
(LAP), which allows access to additional funding within the State right of ways, such as the 
replacement of handicap ramps, bus stop pads and solar lights along 92nd Street between Harding and 
Collins Avenue. This project is under construction with no matching funds required from the Town. 

 
5. Neighborhood Improvements - CGA prepared initial cost summaries and preliminary strategies 

for implementing a street tree/tree canopying program for the Town.  The goal is to enhance the 
quality of the residential districts by employing the benefits of street trees, including added 
property values, shade, and micro-climate/heat island impacts.  The provision of street trees have 
been conceptualized so that they also provide for opportunities with traffic calming, particularly 
at the street corners and at the mid-blocks, so as to further the livability of the streets and 
potentially protect both pedestrians and children who may be playing, bicycling or transiting in 
the street.  The initial, suggested strategy seeks to use trees as a neighborhood wayfinding, and 
community branding element, where specific trees would be used as typical plantings on north-
south streets, different from those east-west and potentially flowering trees at the intersections.  
These, essentially, will constitute the fundamentals of a tree master plan that seeks to continue 
and further the neighborhood enhancement goals expressed in the community charrette document 
and already begun through zoning and design guidelines regulation adoptions.  The approach will 
be further developed pending a walk-though with Town Staff to assess the existing conditions, 
existing constraints, and potential opportunities. The project will be presented to the Town 
Commission before the bid award for the water/sewer/storm drain project is awarded and will be 
implemented if funds are available in the bond issue. 
 
CGA is also developing designs for more attractive street signs and improvements to the traffic 
calming devices throughout the single family neighborhood.  The possibility of laying conduit for 
the undergrounding of FPL and other above ground lines is being reviewed. All these 
improvements could be included as additive alternates to the water, sewer, storm drainage project. 
 
 

Page 97



Page 98

deastman
Typewritten Text
4A1



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102

deastman
Typewritten Text
4A2



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113

deastman
Typewritten Text
4B1



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119

deastman
Typewritten Text
5A



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126

deastman
Typewritten Text
5B



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130

deastman
Typewritten Text

deastman
Typewritten Text
5C



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



NOTE This is an initial work product required for public meeting.  Staff is still reviewing 
all documentation and there may be written supplements or verbal communications at 
final public meeting. 
 

 
 
 

 
WATER, WASTEWATER AND STORMWATER  

 
FACILITIES PLAN 

 

 
 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

FY 2010 -2011 IMPROVEMENTS 
February 8,, 2011 

 
 

DEP Project No.  
** (Drinking Water) 

** (Clean Water) 
 

 
Prepared by: 

 

 
 

Public Utility Management and Planning Services, Inc. 
P.O. Box 221890 

Hollywood, FL  33022-1890  



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................ 1 

1.0  INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................. 3 

1.1  Corporate Limits ......................................................................................... 3 
1.2  Summary of the System .............................................................................. 3 
1.3  Financial Basis of the Utility System .......................................................... 3 

2.0  GENERAL ENVIRONMENT OF SERVICE AREA ............................................ 6 

2.1  Description of Planning Area...................................................................... 6 
2.1.1  South Florida Climate/Ecology....................................................... 6 
2.1.2  Topography and Soils ..................................................................... 8 
2.1.3  Watershed/Surface Waters .............................................................. 9 
2.1.4  Hydrogeological Considerations ..................................................... 9 
2.1.5  Wellhead Protection ...................................................................... 12 
2.1.6  Flora and Fauna............................................................................. 13 
2.1.7  Air Quality .................................................................................... 14 
2.1.8  Socio-economic Conditions of the Town ..................................... 14 

2.2  Managerial Capacity of the Town ............................................................. 16 

3.0  WATER SYSTEM................................................................................................ 17 

3.1  Water Service Area ................................................................................... 17 
3.2  Water Treatment ....................................................................................... 17 

3.2.1  Raw Water Supply ........................................................................ 17 
3.2.2  Water Treatment ........................................................................... 17 
3.2.3  Reclaimed Water System .............................................................. 17 
3.2.4  Treatment Plant Laboratory .......................................................... 18 
3.2.5  Regulatory Standing...................................................................... 18 

3.3  Water Distribution .................................................................................... 18 
3.4  Water Conservation Program .................................................................... 19 
3.5  Current Water Agreements ....................................................................... 19 

3.5.1  Miami-Dade County Bulk Water Agreement ............................... 19 
3.6  Summary of the Water System ...................................................................... 19 

4.0  WASTEWATER SYSTEMS................................................................................ 28 

4.1  Sewer Service Area ................................................................................... 28 
4.2  Wastewater Treatment System ................................................................. 28 
4.3  Wastewater Collection .............................................................................. 28 
4.2  Wastewater Agreements ........................................................................... 30 

4.4.1  Miami-Dade Wastewater  Agreement .......................................... 30 
4.5 Stormwater……………………………………………………………….30 

 

5.0  NEEDS ASSESSMENT ....................................................................................... 43 

5.1  Water System Needs ................................................................................. 43 
5.1.1  Water Main Replacement Program ............................................... 44 

 ii 



5.1.1.1 Current Situation…… ……………………………………44 
5.1.1.2 Problems with Current Situation…… ……………………44 
5.1.1.3 Summary of Alternatives………………………………...44 

5.1.2  Recommended Water Project ....................................................... 46 
5.2  Wastewater Improvements ........................................................................ 46 

5.2.1  Infiltration/Inflow Reduction ........................................................ 46 
5.2.2  Wastewater Program ..................................................................... 50 

 5.3 Stormwater Program………………………………………………….......51 
5.4  Infrastructure Program .............................................................................. 53 
5.5  Permits Required ....................................................................................... 53 
5.6  Environmental Assessment ....................................................................... 54 

6.0  FINANCIAL ASSESSMENT .............................................................................. 57 

6.1  Financial Basis of the Utility .................................................................... 57 
6.1.1  Availability Charges ..................................................................... 57 

6.2  Water and Sewer System .......................................................................... 59 
6.3  Methodology ............................................................................................. 59 

7.0  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ................................................................................. 62 

8.0  CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS ............................................... 63 

 
APPENDIX A  Consent Order 
APPENDIX B  Rate Study 
APPENDIX C  Rate Ordinance 
  

 iii 



LIST OF TABLES 
 
Table 3.1  Past Water Demands ........................................................................................20 
Table 3.2   Projected Demands ..........................................................................................21 
Table 3.3  Water Quality from 2009 Consumer Confidence Report Note .......................22 
Table 3.4   Proposed Water Distribution Replacement Program .......................................23 
Table 3.5  Comparison of Present Worth Of Do Nothing vs Replace Options………….24 
 
Table 4.1  Monthly Comparison of Sanitary Sewer Flows (Flows highest in the Fall and 

Winter) .............................................................................................................31 
Table 4.2  Outline of Proposed Sanitary Sewer Improvements .........................................31 
Table 4.3  Outline of Proposed Stormwater Improvements ..............................................32 
Table 5.1  Estimate of Water System Costs………………………………………….….45 
Table 5.2   Present Worth – Increasing Operations and Maintenance ...............................46 
Table 5.3   Recommended Water Program ........................................................................46 
Table 5.4   EPA Infiltration Allowance .............................................................................47 
Table 5.5   Phase II Infiltration and Inflow Costs ..............................................................48 
Table 5.6  Outline of Proposed Sanitary Sewer Improvements ........................................49 
Table 5.7   Present Worth – Increasing Operations and Maintenance.…………………..50 
Table 5.8  Recommended Wastewater Program………………………………………...51 
Table 5.9  Stormwater Improvements..………………………………………………….52 
Table 5.10 Comparison of Stormwater Improvement Options…………………………..53 
Table 5.11 Recommended Stormwater Program………………………………………...53 
  
Table 6.1  Demonstration that Projected Debt Fits into Current Rate Projections for the 

Town of Surfside..............................................................................................61 
  
Table 8.1   Capital Improvement Program (based on data supplied by CGA) ..................64 
  

 iv 



 v 

LIST OF FIGURES 
 
Figure 1.1  Town of Surfside Corporate Limits ...................................................................5 
 
Figure 2.1  Location of Surfside ..........................................................................................6 
Figure 2.2  Precipitation Patterns .........................................................................................7 
Figure 2.3  Average Annual Temperatures ..........................................................................7 
Figure 2.4  Topographic Map of Surfside ............................................................................8 
Figure 2.5  Hydrogeological Profile (Meyer, 1989) ..........................................................10 
Figure 2.6  Critical Habitat Map ........................................................................................13 
Figure 2.7  Census tracts in the Town of Surfside .............................................................15 
Figure 2.8  Family Income .................................................................................................15 
Figure 2.9  Household Value .............................................................................................16 
 
Figure 3.1  Water Service Area ..........................................................................................24 
Figure 3.2  Water Use 2002-2010 ......................................................................................25 
Figure 3.3  Projected Water Use ........................................................................................26 
Figure 3.4  Damaged Water Main ......................................................................................27 
 
Figure 4.1  Town of Surfside Sewer Service Area ............................................................33 
Figure 4.2  Past Wastewater Use .......................................................................................34 
Figure 4.3  Projected Wastewater Use ...............................................................................34 
Figure 4.4  Wastewater Flows Shows Them to be Highest From July to October ............35 
Figure 4.5  Example of old Orangebrook Pipe in Very Deteriorated Condition ...............35 
Figure 4.6  Example of Old Orangebrook Pipe in Very Deteriorated Condition ..............36 
Figure 4.7  Example of Old Cast Iron Service Line in Very Deteriorated Condition – 

Exposed to Salt Water ......................................................................................37 
Figure 4.8  Example of old PVC Service Line – Many are in Deteriorated Condition ......    
 and/or Broken………………………………………………………………...37 
Figure 4.9 Potential Points where Infiltration and Inflow enter the system……………..38 
Figure 4.10  Indication of Inflow to the Sewer System .....................................................38 
Figure 4.11  Chimney Seal Installed (Courtesy, USSI, Inc) ..............................................39 
Figure 4.12  Installation Procedure (Courtesy, USSI, Inc) ................................................39 
Figure 4.13  LDL Plug Design (Courtesy, USSI, Inc) .......................................................40 
Figure 4.14  LDL Plug Installed in Cleanout (Courtesy, USSI, Inc) .................................40 
Figure 4.15  Rim/Flange of Manhole .................................................................................41 
Figure 4.16  Inflow Defender Manhole Rain Dish ............................................................41 
Figure 4.17  Stormwater Problem Areas ............................................................................42 
 
Figure 5.1  Flood Plain Map for the Town of Surfside ......................................................56 
 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Town of Surfside is located on the coast of northeastern Miami-Dade County.  The 
Town was incorporated under the laws of the State of Florida in 1935.  The Town covers 
an area of 1.0 square mile adjacent to the ocean.  The population is 5,838.  The 
community is primarily residential, with a small concentration of shopping, offices and 
oceanfront property.  Water and sewer treatment services are supplied to the Town by 
Miami-Dade County and Miami Beach. 

The Chief Administrative Officer of the Town Government is the Town Manager, who is 
appointed by the Town Commission.  The Utilities Department is one of the major 
departments within the Town. 

The Town also owns and operates a water distribution system and sewer collection 
system.  There are some pressure deficiencies in the current water distribution piping 
system and some old lines that need replacement.  Infiltration and inflow are ongoing 
issues for the sewer system, for which there is a consent order.  Infiltration and inflow are 
important for the Town of Surfside because it directly costs the Town money.  
Addressing infiltration and inflow would reap immediate benefits through reduced flows 
to Miami-Dade County, and would lessen the potential for overflows. 

This document has been prepared to outline the planning status for the Town of 
Surfside’s water, stormwater and sewer systems based on recent planning for major 
improvements, and to support the Town’s efforts to apply for State Revolving Fund 
(SRF) loans and grants for the period 2011 to 2031.  The Town’s immediate focus is on:  
addressing infiltration and inflow concerns, water piping upgrades, stormwater 
improvements and pipeline upgrades.  The following summarizes the major 
improvements considered: 

• Infiltration and inflow correction to address deficiencies inherited from the 
Florida Water system acquisition 

• Water lines in several areas of the Town need looping for pressure 
improvements, plus replacement of small diameter galvanized pipelines 
and old cast iron pipes that leak excessively.  The Town would reduce 
operating costs and improve system integrity with these improvements. 

• The Town proposes to install stormwater piping and pumping to address 
flowing problems throughout the community.  A pumping station is 
needed to improve flows in the interceptor that these piping systems will 
be connected with. 

Borrowing funds for these projects can be accomplished at low interest rates from the 
State of Florida’s Stare Revolving Fund (SRF) loan program.  The SRF program provides 
low interest loan monies to finance the cost of construction of publicly owned water, 
wastewater and stormwater facilities.  Authority for the program is found in the Florida 
Administrative Code, Chapters 62-622, 62-503 and 62-504.  The Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection (FDEP) is charged with implementing the program.  Generally, 
any local government entity which has jurisdiction over the collection, transmission, 

 1 



treatment, storage or disposal of wastewater, is eligible to apply for SRF loans.  The 
projects for wastewater must be associated with domestic wastewater on the public 
system, including treatment plants, collection systems, transmission lines, storage, 
disposal alternatives (or changes thereto), reclaimed water use or similar projects.  The 
same applies for water and stormwater. 

This is the first such facilities plan for the Town, even though ongoing improvements to 
the water piping systems have been occurring for many years.  This program is fully 
consistent with the Town’s adopted comprehensive plan. 

 2 



1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Corporate Limits 
The Town of Surfside was incorporated in 1935 under the laws of the State of Florida.  
The Town covers of 1.0 square mile and is located south of the Broward/Miami-Dade 
County Line.  The Town serves all of the community within its corporate limits with 
water and sewer service.  The community is primarily residential, with concentrations of 
light shopping and offices within the corporate limits.  The Town is on an island, with a 
beach, just above sea level elevation. 

1.2 Summary of the System 
The Town of Surfside purchases water service from Miami-Dade County.  The water 
supplies are derived from Biscayne Aquifer groundwater wells.  Southeast Florida is 
underlain by a series of interspersed rock formations with varying permeability.  The 
Town owns and operates a water distribution system and sewer collection system within 
the Town limits (see Figure 1.1).  The Town contracts with City of Miami Beach for 
wastewater transmission and ultimate treatment and disposal at Virginia Key Treatment 
Facility, operated by Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer.  However, the costs for 
capital for the facility are passed to the municipal customers. 

1.3 Financial Basis of the Utility System 
The Town’s water and sewer utility system were created to provide safe, reliable and 
financially self-supporting potable water and sanitary wastewater systems which meet the 
water and sewage needs of the residents of the Town of Surfside, and to ensure that 
existing and future systems are constructed, operated and managed with the least possible 
cost to the users, with no direct or indirect financial aid from the general fund or 
taxpayers of the Town.  As a result, the Public Works Department includes the water and 
sewer systems, which have been set up as an Enterprise Fund, operating as a business 
would, whereby water and wastewater service revenues are used to fund operations.  The 
water and sewer systems receive no taxpayer funding for its operations.  The revenues are 
varied and include monthly water and wastewater bills, system connection charges and 
reserve capacity fees.  The stormwater enterprise fund is set-up in a similar manner.  

This document has been prepared to initiate the planning status for the Town of 
Surfside’s water and sewer system, based on recent planning for major improvements, 
and to support the Town’s efforts to obtain SRF loans and grants for the period 2011 to 
2015.  The Town’s immediate focus is on:  addressing infiltration and inflow concerns, 
water piping upgrades, stormwater improvements and pipeline upgrades.  The following 
summarizes the major improvements considered: 

• Infiltration and inflow correction to address deficiencies inherited from the 
Florida Water system acquisition 

• Water lines in several areas of the Town need looping for pressure 
improvements and replacement of small, galvanized pipelines that leak 
excessively.  The Town would reduce operating costs and improve system 
integrity with these improvements. 

 3 



 4 

• The Town proposes to install stormwater piping and pumping to address 
flowing problems throughout the community.  A pumping station is 
needed to improve flows in the interceptor that these piping systems will 
be connected with. 

Borrowing funds for these projects can be accomplished at low interest rates from the 
Stare Revolving Fund (SRF) loan program.  The State of Florida’s SRF program provides 
low interest loan monies to finance the cost of construction of publicly owned water, 
wastewater and stormwater facilities.  Authority for the program is found in Chapters 62-
622, 62-503 and 62-504 of the Florida Administrative Code.  The Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection (FDEP) is charged with implementing the program.  Generally, 
any local government entity which has jurisdiction over the collection, transmission, 
treatment, storage or disposal of wastewater, is eligible to apply for SRF loans.  The 
projects for wastewater must be associated with domestic wastewater on the public 
system, including treatment plants, collection systems, transmission lines, storage, 
disposal alternatives (or changes thereto), reclaimed water use or similar projects.  The 
same applies for water and stormwater. 

This is the first such facilities plan for the Town, even though ongoing improvements to 
the water piping systems have been occurring for many years.  This program is fully 
consistent with the Town’s adopted comprehensive plan. 

 



 
 

 
 
 

Figure 1.1  Town of Surfside Corporate Limits 

 5 



2.0 GENERAL ENVIRONMENT OF SERVICE AREA 

2.1 Description of Planning Area 

2.1.1 South Florida Climate/Ecology 
The Town of Surfside is located on the coastal portion of southeastern Florida (see Figure 
2.1), where the climate is subtropical, with average annual temperatures between 71 and 
75 degrees Fahrenheit.  Temperatures below freezing are not unknown, although they are 
extremely rare.  Cooler temperatures are associated with shorter winter days having less 
direct sunlight, causing reduced evapotranspiration and generally lower humidity.  The 
ocean temperature buffers the Town from both warmer summer and cooler winter 
temperatures. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
           N 

Town of Surfside 

Everglades System 
Low point  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 2.1  Location of Surfside 

Water is the resource that determines the entire ecology of all of south Florida.  Average 
annual rainfall is between 50 and 60 inches per year.  However, the rainfall fluctuates 
over a 6 to 10 year wet-dry cycle.  Florida also has one of the highest evapotranspiration 
rates in the southeastern United States.  Approximately 70 percent of the November 30), 
resulting in extreme wet and dry seasonal variations (see Figure 2.2).  Throughout the wet 
season, the Atlantic Ocean and adjacent estuarine areas produce large amounts of water 
vapor (produced by evaporation from the sun) which form puffy, white, cumulus clouds.  
As these clouds move over land, additional water vapor accumulates from evaporation in 
the Everglades, local lakes and ponds, and evapotranspiration from vegetation.  As the 
amount of water vapor increases, the clouds combine to form anvil-topped thunderheads.  
At some point, the condensed vapor exceeds the holding capacity of the atmosphere.  The 
moisture is released as rain in the form of localized thunderstorms, completing the 
hydrologic cycle.  During an average rainy season, the elevation of groundwater in the 
water table aquifer may be at or above the ground, where its movement becomes a 
terrestrial (flooding) matter. 

 6 



 
Figure 2.2  Precipitation Patterns 

 
Figure 2.3  Average Annual Temperatures 

Evapotranspiration can be significant, particularly in environments such as those found in 
south Florida.  For growth, plants must continually absorb water through their roots and 
circulate it up through the plant.  Water leaves the plant through its leaves by the process 
of transpiration, and enters the atmosphere.  For aquatic plants that grow in swampy 
environments, the quantity of water lost is significant.  These evapotranspiration effects 
during the summer months when the temperatures are highest (see Figure 2.3) offset a 
good portion of the rainfall.  Open water has the highest evaporation rate. 

Although a large amount of rain falls in southeast Florida during the wet season in 
average years, the rainfall is still not sufficient to compensate for water lost during the 
dry season.  The average rainfall exceeds the evaporation rate during the wet months but 
there is a large deficit during the dry months.  The result is dry-season water shortages 
that are a recurrent phenomenon affecting a variety of systems, including groundwater 
levels and supplies, and vegetation patterns.  Compounding the variation is that much of 
the excess summer rainfall is discharged to tide by the extensive canal system that makes 
South Florida developable. 

 7 



2.1.2 Topography and Soils 
The topography of South Florida is virtually flat.  In southwest Florida the land slopes 
south-southwest at 5 to 10 inches per mile or less.  The Town of Surfside lies on the 
beach.  While virtually all of south Florida is less than 15 feet above sea level, with the 
majority ranging between 0 and 12 feet, the Town of Surfside is an island with elevation 
below 5 ft NGVD (see Figure 2.4). 

 
Figure 2.4  Topographic Map of Surfside 

As an island community, the Town has a topography which makes is vulnerable to 
flooding.  This is typical for southeast Florida.  In the Everglades the slope can be as little 
as 1 inch per mile to the south.  The coastal ridge of the east coast is the exception, as it 
slopes more quickly toward the sea.  This flat topography causes a significant amount of 
rainfall to percolate downward into the soil, eventually recharging the surficial aquifer 
system. 

The influence of soil, though not as noticeable in South Florida as in other areas of the 
United States, is reflected by plant cover.  The soil types present in the area reflect both 
the past and present environmental characteristics of the sites where they are found.  

 8 



However, the improvements made by man over the past 70 years have significantly 
altered this natural system.  Muck from remnant mangroves and swamps have far less 
permeability than limestone.  While the native soil and topography create an environment 
that is generally highly permeable and capable of absorbing significant percolation of the 
water into the soil, the change in the land use has resulted in water falling on 
impermeable land, where the water collects in pools or runs off rapidly where 
development has taken place, in direct contrast to the natural condition.  Areas that were 
once wetlands may contain layers of muck that have reduced permeability.  The result of 
run-off flowing over impermeable or lower permeability regions may result in large-scale 
flooding because the storm intensity (rate of rainfall) cannot be used to design facilities 
due to economics. 

2.1.3 Watershed/Surface Waters 
Watershed protection can be broadly defined as a program to reduce the threat of 
contaminants entering the water supplies.  Having such a program is a requirement of the 
Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1986 (Section 1428).  States are required to 
submit a plan to implement source protection.  However, in Florida, the State has 
delegated this responsibility to counties to do on county-wide basis.  Utilities should be 
aware of the impact of surface activities on their water supply, and make additional 
efforts where needed. 

Within the Town of Surfside, the only major surface water body is the Atlantic Ocean 
and the Intracoastal Waterway.   As a result, watershed protection is not an issue within 
the Town corporate limits.  Since the Town has no wells, wellhead protection is also not 
an issue. 

2.1.4 Hydrogeological Considerations 
The entire south Florida plain is underlain by beds of porous limestone that absorb water 
standing on the land during the wet season (mostly in the Everglades).  These limestone 
formations contain large volumes of fresh water - perhaps more than in any other 
limestone formations in the eastern United States.  A geologic profile of southeastern 
Florida has been developed based on drilling data from the Broward County, the United 
States Geological Survey (USGS) and the City of Hollywood (see Figure 2.5).  Southeast 
Florida is underlain by a series of interspersed rock formations with varying permeability.  
The uppermost formation generally encountered along the southeast coast is the Pamlico 
Sand formation of the Biscayne Aquifer.  This surficial, Pleistocene Age deposit occurs 
throughout most of South Florida and consists predominantly of fine to medium-grained 
quartz sand, with varying amounts of shell, detrital clays and organic constituents.  
Thickness of the sand is variable in the area, but averages approximately 40 feet.  Under 
the surficial sand lies a series of fossiliferous, sandy limestones, which are part of the 
Anastasia or Fort Thompson formation.  These also date to the Pleistocene Age and often 
occur interwoven with each other and the Key Largo Limestone, making distinction 
difficult.  Together with the Pamlico Sand layer these formations compose the wedge-
shaped Biscayne Aquifer, which gains thickness as it approaches the coast, where it can 
be as much as 400 feet deep (but generally less than 200 feet). 

 9 



The 
comp
Bisca
separ
land 
Form
The T
sandy

The w
withd
surfa
rainfa
the a
recha
desig
canal
Miam
conse
result

Biscayne A
ponents are a
ayne Aquife
rated by 40 t
surface (bls

mation of the
Tamiami Fo
y, limestones

water levels
drawal for ir
ce with littl
all, most of 
aquifer’s wa
arge.  The c
gned provide
ls by deliver
mi-Dade and
ervation are
t, the aquife

 

Figure 2.5

Aquifer is on
all very perm
er often cont
to 50 feet of 
s) and the 
e Pleistocene
rmation in t
s that have w

 in the Bisc
rrigation and
le in the wa
which occu

ater level c
canals opera
e flood prot
ring water s

d Broward C
as operated 

er levels in e

5  Hydrogeo

ne of the m
meable and f
tains two di

f sand.  The u
lower bed b
e Age lies b
the Town of 
well develop

cayne Aquife
d potable use
ay of confin

urs between 
continues to
ated by the 
tection, but 

stored in Lak
County wellf

by the Sou
eastern wellf

10 

ological Prof

most product
full of water
istinct sandy
upper bed oc
between 11
beneath the 
f Surfside are
ped secondar

er fluctuate 
e.  Since the
nement, the 
May and No

o decline w
South Flor
also serve 

ke Okeechob
fields benefi
uth Florida 
fields steadi

file (Meyer, 

tive aquifers
r.  Beneath t
y, limestone
ccurs betwee
0 and 200 
Anastasia/F
ea consists p
ry porosity a

in response 
e Biscayne A

only major
ovember.  D

without some
ida Water M
to limit dra

bee during t
it due to the
Water Man
ly decline d

1989) 

s in the wo
the Town of 
e beds that 
en 40 and 10
feet bls.  T
t Thompson
primarily of 

and are highl

to rainfall, 
Aquifer is ex
r recharge i
During the w
e form of 
Management
awdown ind
the dry seas
ir proximity

nagement Di
during the w

orld, since it
f Surfside, th
are generall
00 feet below
The Tamiam
n Formation
fossiliferou
y permeable

drainage an
xposed to th
n the area i

winter month
supplementa
t District ar
duced by th
son.  Wester
y to the wate
istrict.  As 

winter month

ts 
he 
ly 
w 

mi 
s.  
s, 

e. 

nd 
he 
is 
hs 
al 
re 
he 
rn 
er 
a 
s, 



 11 

which subjects the Biscayne Aquifer to contamination from saltwater intrusion, as well as 
surficial activities.  Several areas of the Biscayne Aquifer already have saltwater 
intrusion problems in Miami-Dade County, the most extensive occurring along the coast 
and the canals connected directly to the coast without salinity barrier/control structures.  
Generally, the water level in the Biscayne Aquifer averages 2 feet NGVD, except during 
extremely wet and dry periods. 

Beneath the Biscayne Aquifer, is a thick, confining layer known as the Hawthorn Group.  

The Peace River Formation consists mostly of sparsely fossiliferous, light olive gray, 

The Arcadia Formation consists mostly of very soft, poorly lithified marls.  This 

The geology of the Floridan Aquifer was investigated by several test wells.  The 

The Suwannee Limestone can be informally subdivided into two units based on fauna 

The Hawthorn Group dates back to the Miocene Age and contains two formations; the 
Peace River Formation and the Arcadia Formation.  The Hawthorn Group Aquifers are 
used for water supply in some areas of south Florida, but have low permeabilities.  The 
Hawthorn Group beneath Broward County appears to act as a barrier between the saline 
water of the underlying Floridan Aquifer and the fresh Biscayne Aquifer.  

silty limestones that are relatively well inundated.  The transition from the Peace River 
Formation to the Arcadia Formation is marked by a decrease in hardness and in grain 
size, detrital quartz concentration and fossil abundance. 

formation can be informally subdivided into two members, the upper unit (480-545 feet) 
that consists of poorly lithified sand marls that are highly friable and a lower unit (545-
925 feet) that consists of finer grained marls that are cohesive (due to a high clay content) 
rather than friable.  The upper Arcadia Formation marls are light olive gray to yellowish 
gray, contain abundant fine grained quartz sand, and have a fauna dominated by small 
benthonic foraminifera.  The lower formation marls are light olive gray, sparsely 
fossiliferous and appear to have very low porosities.  The boundary between the upper 
and lower Arcadia Formations is located at approximately 545 feet.  Phosphate grains and 
shell fragments are common in both the upper and lower Arcadia Formation.  The lower 
Arcadia Formation marls are the principal barrier to vertical flow between the Upper 
Floridan and the Biscayne Aquifer. 

investigations indicate the Floridan consists predominantly of fossiliferous limestones 
that belong, in descending order, to the Suwannee Limestone (Oligocene), Ocala 
Limestone (Late Eocene), and Avon Park Formations (Middle Eocene).  These 
limestones consist mostly of fossiliferous grainstones, and fossil peloid packstones and 
grainstones.  The transition from the clay and phosphate-rich marls and limestones of the 
Hawthorn Group to the comparatively clean limestones of the Suwannee Limestone, 
Ocala Limestone, and upper Avon Park Formations is marked by a decrease in gamma 
ray emissions.  The boundary between the Hawthorn Group and Suwannee Limestone is 
placed at 925 feet, the shallowest depth at which relatively clean fossiliferous limestones 
was recorded in the cuttings. 

and lithology.  The upper part of Suwannee Limestone consists of light gray to yellowish 
gray fossiliferous limestones that contain a diverse marine fauna (gastropods, 



 12 

echinoderms, bivalves, foraminifera, etc.).  The lower Suwannee Limestone, as well as 
the Ocala Limestone and part of the Avon Park formation, consist predominantly of fossil 
peloid grainstones and packstones with low diversity faunas dominated by the distinctive 
large cone-shaped foraminifera of the genus Dictyoconus.  The upper Suwannee 
Limestone consists of interbedded limestones with variable, but usually low visual 
porosity, whereas the Lower Suwannee Limestone usually has medium to high 
intergranual porosity. 

The Ocala Limestone is lighter-colored (white to very pale orange) and less fossiliferous 

Below 1700 feet, the dissolved chloride concentrations rapidly increase beyond 10,000 

2.1.5 Wellhead Protection 
oadly defined as a program to reduce the threat to water 

than either the lower Suwannee Limestone or the upper Avon Park Formation below it.  
The upper and lower boundaries of the Ocala Limestone are placed, respectively, at 1125 
feet.  The Ocala Limestone has a low gamma ray emission because of its relative purity.  
The upper Avon Park Formation is darker colored (yellowish gray) than the overlying 
upper Floridan Aquifer limestones.  The Avon Park is harder than the overlying 
Formations.  The Floridan Aquifer within these formations is an artesian system where 
the potentiometric surface of the water is about 25 feet above the land surface, providing 
an expected surface between of about feet ngvd.  The water level elevation may vary 
seasonally since it depends on recharge from other areas.  Analysis of the water of the 
Floridan System indicates that it contains some chlorides, with salinity increasing with 
depth and proximity to the coastline.  Dissolved chlorides range from 2000-5000 mg/l.  
Location along the coast creates the potential for water quality changes with time (toward 
higher chlorides). Upper Floridan water is suitable for low pressure, reverse osmosis 
feedwater and is productive enough to provide approximately 1.5 MGD wells at 
relatively close spacing.  The primary production zones lie between 925-1,050 feet and 
between 1415 and 1700 feet below land surface.  The dissolved chloride concentrations 
remain relatively stable throughout the production zones. 

mg/l as they approach the Oldsmar Formation.  The lower Oldsmar Formation, 
commonly referred to as the “Boulder Zone,” is a highly cavernous, limestone, dolomitic 
formation of highly mineralized water with little artesian pressure.  The basic “Boulder 
Zone” terminology was first utilized by oil well drillers to describe the apparent difficulty 
of drilling through a highly fractured formation, akin to drilling through boulders.  The 
formation is characterized by frequent loss of drilling fluid, which goes into these large, 
cavernous areas.  The formation is actually a rather intricate networks of vugs and 
caverns that exist in the lower portion of the Floridan system.  The Boulder Zone is 
generally limestone that is highly fractured and interspersed with dolomite.  The zone is 
several hundred feet thick, and is most generally used for the injection of concentrate 
reject water from membrane plants and excess treated wastewater effluent.  A 
comparison of videotapes indicates that the Boulder Zone on the east coast appears to be 
thinner and less fractured than it is on the west coast (which has larger vugs) and a 
hydraulic gradient which provides limited movement of water within the formation. 

Watershed protection can be br
supplies from contaminants.  Having such a program is a requirement of the Safe 
Drinking Water Act amendments of 1986 (Section 1428).  States are required to submit a 



 13 

plan to implement source protection.  However, in Florida, the State has delegated this 
responsibility to counties to do on county-wide basis.  Utilities should be aware of the 
impact of surface activities on their water supply, and make additional efforts where 
needed. 

The Town is a barrier island.  As a result there are no wells on the island that would be 

2.1.6 Flora and Fauna 
e water moving across the land dictates the type of ecology that 

A review of the Fish and Wildlife Service cite indicates the following species of concern 

Figure 2.6  Critical Habitat Map 

used for potable water supplies.  As a result there are no issues for the Town and the 
Town is not within any wellhead protection zone. 

The el vation and path of 
will develop.  Because vegetative types differ in their nutrient requirements and in ability 
to live in water-saturated or saline areas, soil type also plays a role in determining plant 
distribution.  Because virtually all areas within the Town have been developed at some 
point, there is little native soil remaining in unaltered form.  The significant alterations in 
the course of the past 60 years that has caused it to become intensively drained, diked and 
developed to allow for man’s use.  The result is that the paradise of flora and fauna that 
once existed in south Florida has been totally changed by artificial manipulation to 
control flooding.  Today, visitors to South Florida often see water in abundance in the 
canals, swamps and lakes that exist throughout south Florida. 

that might be present on the site:  eastern indigo snake, wood stork, crested caracara.  Of 
these species, only the wood stork has been seen on the site feeding, but not nesting.  The 
site is not conducive to wood stork nesting activity.  There is no critical habitat on the site 
(see Figure 2.5). 

 



2.1.7 Air Quality 
Air quality for the Town of Surfside, like the rest of south Florida is good as a result of 
the onshore winds that disperse any pollutants that might exist.  The utility does nothing 
that would potentially affect air pollution.    

2.1.8 Socio-economic Conditions of the Town  
As of July, 1, 2006, the Annual Estimates of the population of incorporated Places of 
Florida web-site, provided by the US Census Bureau, the estimated the Town's 
population at 5,838.  As of the 2000 Census, there were 4,909 people, residing in the 
Town.  Racial make-up of the Town of Surfside was noted as follows: 

• White Non-Hispanic (52.7%) 
• Black (1.3%) 
• Hispanic (43.5%) 
• Asian (0.5%) 
• American Indian (0.5%) 
• Other race (1.5%)   

There were 2,248 households: 59.2% of the households were considered family 
households.  46.6% of the households were married couples living together, 9.6% had a 
female head-of-household with no husband present, and 15.1% of all households were 
made up of individuals.  29.4% of the population is children under 18 years old, while 
25.9 percent were over 65 year old.  The census tracts are outlined on Figure 2.7. 

The median income for a household in the town was $62,399 in 2008, up from $50,297 in 
2000 (see Figure 2.8).   Average house value is $613,059 in 2006, which is $400,000 
over the state-wide average and nearly double the value in 2000 (see Figure 2.9).  About 
11.5% of the population lives below the poverty line, including 19.4% of those under age 
18 and 7.9% of those aged 65 or over (http://www.city-data.com/city/Surfside-
Florida.html).  It should be noted that average house valuation has been decreasing 
significantly since the $613,059 was calculated in 2006. 

 14 

http://www.city-data.com/city/Surfside-Florida.html
http://www.city-data.com/city/Surfside-Florida.html


 
Figure 2.7  Census tracts in the Town of Surfside  38.02 

 
Figure 2.8  Family Income 

 15 



 
Figure 2.9  Household Value 

2.2 Managerial Capacity of the Town 
The governing body for the Town consists of four at-large Commissioners, one of whom 
is chosen annually to be the Vice Mayor, and an At-Large elected Mayor.  Elections are 
held every two years.  The Chief Administrative Officer of the Town Government is the 
Town Manager who is appointed by the Town Commission.  Public Works which 
manages the Utilities section, is one of the major departments within the Town.  The 
others are Executive, Legal, Town Clerk, Building, Police, Parks & Recreation and 
Finance.  The Utilities section operates the water, wastewater and stormwater utility 
systems within the Town.  The water system has over 1,350 connections within the 
Town’s service area.  The wastewater system serves 1,350 connections with central 
sewer. 

The Town Manager, Public Works and Finance Department staffs have significant 
experience with the current utility system.  The Town also utilizes consultants who help 
with specialized issues, including engineering, operations and SRF program issues.  The 
Town is fully prepared to implement a program of this magnitude. 

 16 



3.0 WATER SYSTEM 

3.1 Water Service Area 
The Town has a land area of approximately 1 square mile.  The water service area 
matches the corporate limits (see Figure 3.1).  There is an agreement for bulk water 
service and interconnects with Miami-Dade County for bulk service.   

3.2 Water Treatment 

3.2.1 Raw Water Supply 
Because people in urbanized South Florida use groundwater supplies that are replenished 
directly by summer rainfall, the quantity of water available is finite and the quality must 
be protected for the end users - the public and the ecosystem.  Water supplies in the State 
of Florida are regulated by five water management districts established by the Florida 
Legislature, via consumptive water use permits issued based upon water demands and 
availability of the resource.  Since ground water is the principal source of raw water for 
treatment in south Florida, the South Florida Water Management District regulates 
withdrawals by issuing water use permits, which limit both annual average and maximum 
day withdrawals from the aquifer.  Periodic renewal (typically five years) of the 
consumptive use permits allows the water systems to adjust the quantities for withdrawal 
based on growth and/or prior experience.  These permits are controlled by Miami-Dade 
County since they supply potable water to the Town.  The Town has no water use 
permits. 

3.2.2 Water Treatment 
The Town currently purchases all of its potable water  via bulk service agreement from 
Miami-Dade County, which provides service for approximately two million customers in 
Miami-Dade County.   The Town of Surfside is serviced by the Hialeah-Preston Water 
Treatment Plant service area. The source of water is from 45 shallow wells in the 
Biscayne Aquifer and augmented with five Upper Floridian Aquifer deep wells.  
Projected water supply to the Town of Surfside is assured in accordance with the 
MDWASD Water Supply Plan and contractual agreements. Table 3.1 and Figure 3.2 
outline the past water demands (2002-2010).  Table 3.2 and Figure 3.3 outline the 
projected demands.  Table 3.3 outlines the water quality information from the Town’s 
most recent consumer confidence report.  The County has sufficient water to supply the 
Town’s needs.  The water quality meets all drinking water standards.  However, pipe 
deterioration in the distribution system creates water quality concerns that the Town 
wants to correct. 

3.2.3 Reclaimed Water System 
Effluent reuse is of substantial benefit to the region for a number of reasons, the most 
important of which is the reduction of competing water withdrawals from the surficial 
aquifer system by the application of the reclaimed water.  The Central and South Florida 
drainage system has lowered the water table, causing saltwater intrusion to occur.  
Carefully designed applications of effluent to critical areas of the surficial aquifer could 
protect and maintain freshwater sources.  However, the Town must rely on Miami-Dade 

 17 



County for reclaimed water, as the Town has no treatment plant of its own.  To date, the 
Miami-Dade County has not had facilities or the quantity of reclaimed water available to 
extend this service to the Town of Surfside.  This situation could change if Miami-Dade 
County extends reclaimed water to the beach. 

3.2.4 Treatment Plant Laboratory 
The Town currently contracts routine monitoring.  All other laboratory samples, 
including all compliance samples, are sent to contract labs. 

3.2.5 Regulatory Standing 
The Town is in full compliance with its water system.  There are no known regulatory 
actions for same. 

3.3 Water Distribution 
Water Distribution is responsible for the maintenance and repair of the potable water 
distribution and sewer collection systems throughout the Town.  Currently there are over 
11 miles of water lines installed beginning in 1938. Primary mains feeding the system run 
under the Town’s streets and vary in size from 6-inch to 16-inches in diameter, which 
feed three-inch and four-inch water lines located along the rear property lines. Materials 
on the water distribution system vary from galvanized iron to asbestos concrete to PVC 
and ductile iron, depending on the age of the system.  The oldest water lines exceed fifty 
years, which may be beyond their useful life.  Some of these water lines are made of cast 
iron and some are galvanized.  For much of the year they are partially submerged, 
sometimes in salt water.  An investigation of the condition of these pipelines indicates a 
state of deterioration of older pipelines and the priority for replacement.  Those pipelines 
submerged in saltwater are likely to have especially acute problems (see Figure 3.4).  
Failures of these pipelines, especially large ones, will cause road and potentially property 
damage, so a proactive approach by the Town is needed.  

Experience throughout Florida indicates that the acidic soil conditions do not promote 
long life of galvanized pipelines  Some of the Town’s service lines, including all of those 
on replaced water mains, are non-metallic, thereby eliminating corrosion potential.  The 
existing services attached to the cast iron lines may be constructed with galvanized 
fittings.  These service lines are subject to severe corrosion and may also be a source of 
leaks and lead leaching into the water supplies.  They will be replaced at the same time as 
the rest of the pipes.  Standard materials for water lines are PVC C900 for the pipe, 
polyethylene or copper tubing for service lines and brass fittings to connect the PVC and 
polyethylene tubing.  All are appropriate materials. 

Daily maintenance includes large user meter readings and repairs to pumps, valves and 
piping.  The Town should replace or overhaul the large meters no less than every two 
years. Town crews repair most breaks, valves and leaks.  An annual contract will also be 
in place for fire hydrant testing and repair that includes maintenance, painting and 
reporting fire flows to the Town. 

 18 



 19 

Maintenance and upgrades to the water meter inventory to maintain these assets in good 
condition is required.  The present meter base is approximately 1,350 active accounts.  
Since the average life for accurate registration is from seven to ten years, Town crews 
change out many of the oldest meters each year.  All large meters appear to have been 
repaired or replaced in the past two years.  Unaccounted-for water is 15 percent 
according to Town staff.  Table 3.4 shows work intended to be constructed to address 
deteriorated piping.   

3.4 Water Conservation Program 
The Town of Surfside has had a formal water conservation program since 2007.  A 
typical water conservation program is composed of five elements:  develop/maintain an 
accurate database of water consumption to reduce municipal water waste; a retrofit 
program; the modification of relevant Town Codes (plumbing, irrigation, landscaping, 
the promotion of Florida Friendly Landscaping; and public information and education 
programs). 

3.5 Current Water Agreements 

3.5.1 Miami-Dade County Bulk Water Agreement 
An agreement between the Town of Surfside and Miami-Dade County provides for 
Miami-Dade County to supply the Town of Surfside with potable water.  The agreement 
has the following provisions: 

• Defined the service area – limiting Surfside to the then-Town limits. 
• Defined a rate methodology for potable water 
• Defined meter locations, readings, meter inaccuracies and a dispute 

resolution 
• The agreement has a provision on water quality 

The Town maintains the distribution system. 

 
3.6  Summary of the Water System 
The water system is old, but has been maintained over the years.  Staff operates the 
facilities to meet all regulatory requirements.  Staff and management of the utility are 
appropriate.  Water supplies are adequate to supply the Town’s needs.  However, 
deficiencies in the system do exist.  The major issue for construction is water lines in 
several areas of the Town need looping for pressure improvements and to replace small, 
galvanized pipelines that leak excessively.  The Town would reduce operating costs and 
improve system integrity with these improvements. 

 
 



 20 

Table 3.1 Past Water Demands 
Date MGD Date MGD 

Oct-02 0.88 Jul-06 1.11 
Nov-02 0.83 Aug-06 1.06 
Dec-02 1.03 Sep-06 0.96 
Jan-03 0.97 Oct-06 1.07 
Feb-03 1.03 Nov-06 1.09 
Mar-03 0.98 Dec-06 1.01 
Apr-03 1.01 Jan-07 1.21 
May-03 0.91 Feb-07 1.10 
Jun-03 0.92 Mar-07 1.05 
Jul-03 1.01 Apr-07 1.10 
Aug-03 0.93 May-07 0.92 
Sep-03 0.96 Jun-07 0.88 
Oct-03 0.95 Jul-07 0.85 
Nov-03 1.00 Aug-07 1.01 
Dec-03 0.99 Sep-07 0.90 
Jan-04 1.01 Oct-07 0.83 
Feb-04 1.00 Nov-07 0.96 
Mar-04 1.09 Dec-07 0.83 
Apr-04 1.02 Jan-08 0.97 
May-04 0.91 Feb-08 0.84 
Jun-04 1.20 Mar-08 0.82 
Jul-04 1.06 Apr-08 0.93 
Aug-04 1.02 May-08 0.90 
Sep-04 0.88 Jun-08 1.00 
Oct-04 0.84 Jul-08 0.86 
Nov-04 1.06 Aug-08 0.93 
Dec-04 0.97 Sep-08 0.93 
Jan-05 1.18 Oct-08 0.96 
Feb-05 1.11 Nov-08 0.79 
Mar-05 1.13 Dec-08 0.95 
Apr-05 1.07 Jan-09 1.00 
May-05 1.00 Feb-09 0.73 
Jun-05 1.14 Mar-09 1.17 
Jul-05 1.00 Apr-09 1.03 
Aug-05 1.17 May-09 0.90 
Sep-05 1.01 Jun-09 0.84 
Oct-05 1.00 Jul-09 0.96 
Nov-05 1.01 Aug-09 0.90 
Dec-05 0.98 Sep-09 1.00 
Jan-06 1.12 Oct-09 0.95 
Feb-06 1.09 Nov-09 0.89 
Mar-06 1.12 Dec-09 1.01 
Apr-06 1.12   
May-06 1.27   
Jun-06 1.11   

  



 21 

Table 3.2 - Projected Demands 

Date MGD Date MGD 
Jan-07 1.21 Jan-11 0.93 
Feb-07 1.10 Feb-11 0.93 
Mar-07 1.05 Mar-11 0.93 
Apr-07 1.10 Apr-11 0.93 
May-07 0.92 May-11 0.94 
Jun-07 0.88 Jun-11 0.94 
Jul-07 0.85 Jul-11 0.94 
Aug-07 1.01 Aug-11 0.94 
Sep-07 0.90 Sep-11 0.94 
Oct-07 0.83 Oct-11 0.95 
Nov-07 0.96 Nov-11 0.95 
Dec-07 0.83 Dec-11 0.95 
Jan-08 0.97 Jan-12 0.95 
Feb-08 0.84 Feb-12 0.95 
Mar-08 0.82 Mar-12 0.96 
Apr-08 0.93 Apr-12 0.96 
May-08 0.90 May-12 0.96 
Jun-08 1.00 Jun-12 0.96 
Jul-08 0.86 Jul-12 0.96 
Aug-08 0.93 Aug-12 0.97 
Sep-08 0.93 Sep-12 0.97 
Oct-08 0.96 Oct-12 0.97 
Nov-08 0.79 Nov-12 0.97 
Dec-08 0.95 Dec-12 0.98 
Jan-09 1.00 Jan-13 0.98 
Feb-09 0.73 Feb-13 0.98 
Mar-09 1.17 Mar-13 0.98 
Apr-09 1.03 Apr-13 0.98 
May-09 0.90 May-13 0.99 
Jun-09 0.84 Jun-13 0.99 
Jul-09 0.96 Jul-13 0.99 
Aug-09 0.90 Aug-13 0.99 
Sep-09 1.00 Sep-13 0.99 
Oct-09 0.95 Oct-13 1.00 
Nov-09 0.89 Nov-13 1.00 
Dec-09 1.01 Dec-13 1.00 
Jan-10 0.90 Jan-14 1.00 
Feb-10 0.90 Feb-14 1.00 
Mar-10 0.91 Mar-14 1.01 
Apr-10 0.91 Apr-14 1.01 
May-10 0.91 May-14 1.01 
Jun-10 0.91 Jun-14 1.01 
Jul-10 0.91 Jul-14 1.01 
Aug-10 0.92 Aug-14 1.02 
Sep-10 0.92 Sep-14 1.02 
Oct-10 0.92 Oct-14 1.02 
Nov-10 0.92 Nov-14 1.02 
Dec-10 0.93 Dec-14 1.03 



 
Table 3.3 

Water Quality from 2009 Consumer Confidence Report 
Note report shows nothing but lead, copper and coliforms? 

Parameter MGCL MCL 
Town 
Value

Range for 
Town Health Impact 

Total Coliform 
(%) 0 0 1% 0-1% Naturally present in the 

environment. 
Lead (ppb) 

(At entry point) 
(ppb) 

0 *AL=15 0.18 ND 
Corrosion of plumbing 

systems; erosion of natural 
deposits. 

Lead 
(At tap) (ppb) 0 *AL=15 0.18 ND 

Corrosion of plumbing 
systems; erosion of natural 

deposits. 

Copper 
(At tap) (ppm) 1.3 *AL=1.3 8.5 ND –0.14 

Corrosion of household 
plumbing systems; erosion 

of natural deposits. 
  

 22 



Table 3.4  Proposed Water Distribution Replacement Program 
 
 
PROJECT TITLE: Water Main Replacement Design   CG&A PROJECT NO. 09-2365 
            
LOCATION:          
            
OWNER: Town of Surfside         
            
ESTIMATED BY   Shaun Bamforth CHECKED BY  APPROVED BY 
ITEM           
NO. DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT NET PRICE TOTAL PRICE 

1 8" Gate Valve 170 EA $1,650.00 $280,500.00  
2 Fire Hydrant Assembly 23 EA $2,750.00 $63,250.00  
3 8" x 6" Tee 23 EA $650.00 $14,950.00  
4 8" x 8" Tee 49 EA $700.00 $34,300.00  
5 8" x 8" Cross 5 EA $1,000.00 $5,000.00  
6 8" 90 Degree Bend 16 EA $405.00 $6,480.00  
7 8"- 45 Degree Bend 224 EA $228.00 $51,072.00  
8 8"- 22.5 Degree Bend 4 EA $405.00 $1,620.00  
9 8"- 11.25 Degree Bend 2 EA $405.00 $810.00  

10 8" x 6" Reducer 10 EA $225.00 $2,250.00  
11 8" P.V.C. 900 25594 LF $40.00 $1,023,760.00  
12 6" P.V.C. 900 611 LF $37.50 $22,912.50  
13 Air Release Valves 15 EA $750.00 $11,250.00  
14 BSP 57 EA $500.00 $28,500.00  
15 Proposed Water Service (NIC Meter) 687 EA $1,300.00 $893,100.00  
16 Pipe Plugs 46 EA $250.00 $11,500.00  
17 Mill and Remove Pavement 68251 SY $7.50 $511,882.50  
18 Asphalt - 1st lift 68251 SY $10.00 $682,510.00  
19 Asphalt - 2nd lift 68251 SY $8.00 $546,008.00  
20 Mobilization (10%) 1 LS   $419,165.50  
21 MOT (10%) 1 LS   $419,165.50  

        TOTAL = $5,029,986.00  
 
  

 23 



Table 3.5  Comparison of Present Worth Of Do Nothing vs Replace Options 
 
 Maintenance $525,000 $515,000

Growth Rate 1.045 Var from 1.018

Present Worth $5,029,986 $4,863,920
Assume 6.125% Infl
Debt 0 $101,419.00

TOTAL PW $5,029,986 $4,965,339

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Figure 3.1  Water Service Area 

 
 

.  

 24 



 

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

Apr-01 Sep-02 Jan-04 May-05 Oct-06 Feb-08 Jul-09 Nov-10

Date

Fl
ow

 (M
G

D
)

 
Figure 3.2  Water Use 2002-2010 

 

 25 



0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

Apr-01 Sep-02 Jan-04 May-05 Oct-06 Feb-08 Jul-09 Nov-10

Date

Fl
ow

 (M
G

D
)

 

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

Oct-06 Feb-08 Jul-09 Nov-10 Apr-12 Aug-13 Dec-14 May-16

Date

Fl
ow

 (M
G

D
)

 
Figure 3.3  Projected Water Use 

 

 26 



 
 

 
 

Figure 3.4  Damaged Water Main 

 27 



4.0 WASTEWATER SYSTEMS 

4.1 Sewer Service Area 
Like the water system, the Town of Surfside provides service throughout the entire Town, but 
contracts with the City of Miami Beach to transmit the wastewater to Miami-Dade County to 
treat the wastewater.  Figure 4.1 shows the area served by the Town, which conforms to the 
water service area. 

4.2 Wastewater Treatment System 
The Town of Surfside is supplied with Wastewater transmission to Miami-Dade County by the 
City of Miami Beach.  The agreement is outlined in Section 4.4. 

4.3 Wastewater Collection 
The Town is responsible for maintenance of its own lift stations and collection systems, and 
since keeping excess flows down benefits the Town financially, correction of leaks and 
infiltration should be priority projects.  Ongoing testing of the influent by the Town of Surfside, 
and monitoring of the Town’s two lift stations provides a measure to determine whether 
inappropriate amounts of infiltration are going to the wastewater plant.  The collection system 
consists of gravity sewer which is made up of PVC (poly vinyl chloride) or VCP (vitrified clay 
pipe). 

Maintenance and repair of the sewer force main piping and gravity collection system includes 
excavation and repair to manholes, gravity piping, service connections and force mains.  Town 
crews are responsible for insuring the reliable service of two sewage lift stations and 
accompanying force mains and gravity lines throughout the Town of Surfside.  Wastewater from 
the Town is transmitted through over 155 manholes, nearly 11 miles of gravity mains and force 
main to the City of Miami Beach.   

Figure 4.2 shows the flows for the past four years.  From Figure 4.2 the following can be 
discerned: 

• Average daily flows are just under 1 MGD at present 
• Flows increase with rainfall 

Wastewater flows should be less than sewer flows.  Historically the sewer flows appear to have 
been about 400,000 gpd less than water flows.  With the implementation of water conservation 
and limits on irrigation, the water flows decreased by 200,000 gpd.  However, sewer flows have 
increased dramatically in the past 3 years (see Table 4.1 and Figure 4.3) to a point where they are 
about 300,000 gpd (or 40 percent)  higher than water flows.  Figure 4.2 outlines the projected 
sewer system improvements. Figure 4.4 shows flows to be highest in September and October, 
which coincides with a high groundwater table at the end of the rainy season.  The data indicates 
that the Town of Surfside is in need of a comprehensive infiltration and inflow program.  The 
Town is facing action from FDEP over the Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SOSs). This is a 
substantial issue with infiltration and inflow.  A consent order has been issued to require the 
Town address the problem (see Appendix A).  Note that Appendix A includes the consent decree 

 28 



with Miami-Dade DERM that requires compliance with the Town so that Miami Dade County 
can comply with its consent order with US EPA (first cover page included for reference only) 

Figure 4.5-4-7 show various sewer laterals made of Orangeburg pipe that are in deteriorated 
shape.  Orangeburg pipe and cast iron does not last in the salty soils in Surfside.  These need to 
be replaced as a part of the infiltration and inflow program the Town proposes.  These are major 
sources of both inflow and infiltration of the system.  Figure 4.8 shows that the system has other 
issues (like broken service line piping) that also need to be addressed with smoke testing and 
point repairs – also part of the infiltration and inflow program.   

The manholes and clean-outs are required for access and removal of material that may build up 
in the piping system and for changes in direction of the pipe.  In Surfside, during storm events, 
SSOs are common.  Figure 4.9 shows various places where water can enter the sewer system.  
The figure shows that when it rains, there is increased flow into the sanitary sewer system.  The 
fact that increases in flow are rainfall driven, indicates the presence of inflow – direct input of 
stormwater from cleanouts, broken piping of manholes.  It is not indicative of infiltration which 
is groundwater.  Infiltration is an ongoing issue for any collection system.  The manhole cover 
may not seal perfectly, becoming another source of infiltration.  Pre-cast concrete manholes limit 
the number of joints.  Elastomeric seals are placed between successive manhole rings.  Many 
utilities will require the exterior of the manholes to have a coal-tar or epoxy covering the exterior 
which helps to keep water out.  Service lines exist on private property and typically the utility 
has limited control over what happens there.  Hence the removal or accidental breaking of a 
cleanout, or cracking of the pipe may be a significant source of inflow to the system.  Both are 
potential sources of inflow during rain events.  Simple methods can be used to detect them and 
they should be part of ongoing maintenance efforts. 

Storms highlight the need to reduce infiltration and inflow into the collection system so as not to 
overwhelm the piping system causing plant damage or sewage overflows into streets.  Figure 
4.10 shows a graph of rainfall and sewer flows.  Peaking indicated inflow into the sewer system.  
The following outlines a basic program for inflow detection as a part of the preconstruction 
evaluation of the utility system: 

• Inspection of all sanitary sewer manholes for damage, leakage or other problems 
• Repair of benches in poor condition or exhibiting substantial leakage 
• Repair of manhole walls in poor condition or exhibiting substantial leakage 
• Repair/sealing of chimneys in all manholes to reduce infiltration from the street 

during flooding events (Figures 4.11 and 4.14) 
• Installation of LDL plugs where manholes in the public right-of-way or other 

portion of the Utility’s system is damaged (Figure 4.13 and 4.14) 
• Installation of dishes in all manholes to prevent infiltration (see Figures 4.15 and 

4.16) 
• Identification of sewer system leaks, including those on private property (via 

location of smoke on private property) 
• To gain a better understanding of potential infiltration amounts, the raw 

wastewater quality for the Town of Surfside should be tested for BOD and 
chlorides.  Low BOD indicates water diluting the sewage.  High chlorides means 
seawater is getting into the system.   

 29 



Maintenance and repair of the force main piping and gravity collection system includes the 
cleaning and televised inspection of the gravity lines and manholes, and the cleaning and 
adjustments to the force main air release valves.  Repairs include excavation and repair to 
manholes, gravity piping, service connections and force mains.  The sewer cleaning program 
involves the cleaning and televised inspection of 10 percent of the gravity lines and manholes 
each year, the cleaning and adjustments to the force main air release valves, and response to 
complaints about stoppages.  In addition, new connections, gravity mains and force main piping 
are installed. After the cleaning and inspection are complete all points that are in need of repair 
are logged and are prioritized. The utility has trained personnel to repair gravity sewer pipe by 
installing fiberglass liners inside of piping at the point of failure.  

There are two lift stations.  The maintenance staff is responsible for the inspection, maintenance, 
and repair of pumping stations. The pumping stations are inspected regularly to insure proper 
electrical and pumping efficiency. In addition each pump station is inspected on an annual 
schedule that involves removing each pump for a detailed inspection as well as the pump control 
panel and the SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition) system is fine tuned as 
needed. From these inspections the department generates and prioritizes a list of needed repairs 
and or upgrades that help avoid failures and costly down time.   

Table 4.2 outlines the anticipated improvements on the sanitary sewer system. 

4.4 Wastewater Agreements 
The following agreements involve the Town of Surfside. 

4.4.1 Miami-Dade Wastewater Agreement  
 
The agreement between the Town of Surfside and Miami-Dade County was executed in March 
12, 1985.  The concept in the agreement is to permit the Town of Surfside to discharge its treated 
wastewater to the ocean via the County’s North District ocean outfall.   

The following are the basic concept is: 

• Surfside can deliver wastewater to Miami-Dade County for treatment and disposal 
up to 1.0 MGD average daily flow 

• Cost is $2.497/100 gallons in the wet season 
• Sets responsibilities for maintenance and water quality 
• Provides for correction of inflow to the process 

4.5 Stormwater 
 
Most of the Town is located below elevation 5.  Mean high tide is elevation 2.0.  As a result 
there is severe potential for flooding.  Flooding coinciding with sanitary sewer leaks and 
overflows creates a potential for environmental impacts to Biscayne Bay.  Figure 4.17 shows the 
areas with significant potential issues with stormwater flooding and impacts from sanitary sewer.  
The Town anticipates a project to protect property and water quality in this area.  Table 4.3 
outlines the anticipated improvements on the sanitary sewer system. 

 30 



Table 4.1 Monthly Comparison of Sanitary Sewer Flows 
(Flows highest in the Fall and Winter) 

Date 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 
Jan 0.73 0.82 0.82 0.82 0.82 0.82 0.94 
Feb 0.73 0.81 0.71 0.84 0.79 0.79 0.73 
Mar 0.87 0.70 0.73 0.87 0.77 0.77 0.75 
Apr 0.82 0.65 0.70 0.83 0.73 0.73 0.70 
May  0.74 0.56 0.63 0.73 0.64 0.64 0.73 
June 0.80 0.58 0.68 0.78 0.68 0.68 0.98 
July 0.60 0.54 0.56 0.63 0.57 0.57 0.73 
Aug 1.05 0.54 0.62 0.72 0.63 0.63 0.81 
Sept 0.92 0.56 0.60 0.68 0.61 0.61 1.27 
Oct 1.31 0.70 0.78 0.91 0.87 0.87 1.13 
Nov  1.10 0.42 0.66 0.63 0.86 0.86 1.29 
Dec 0.81 0.47 0.53 0.65 0.84 0.84 1.22 

 
Table 4.2  Outline of Proposed Sanitary Sewer Improvements 

 

PROJECT TITLE: Sewer Lining and Replacement Project   
CG&A PROJECT NO. 09-
2365 

OWNER: Town of Surfside         
ESTIMATED BY   Shaun Bamforth CHECKED BY  APPROVED BY 
ITEM           

NO. DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT 
NET 

PRICE 
TOTAL 
PRICE 

1 Clean and TV existing system 6725 LF $8.00 $53,800.00  
2 Line 8" Sewer 29159 LF $34.00 $991,406.00  
3 Line 10" Sewer 11824 LF $36.00 $425,664.00  
4 Line 12" Sewer 1412 LF $41.50 $58,598.00  
5 Line 15" Sewer 1716 LF $52.50 $90,090.00  
6 Reconstruct 8" Sewer (SDR 35) 4445 LF $50.00 $222,273.67  
7 Reconstruct 10" Sewer (SDR 35) 1803 LF $55.00 $99,145.38  
8 Reconstruct 12" Sewer (SDR 35) 215 LF $60.00 $12,916.10  
9 Reconstruct 15" Sewer (SDR 35) 262 LF $65.00 $17,004.98  

10 Line Lateral from main to property line 374 EA $3,750.00 $1,402,500.00 
11 Replace Lateral from Main to Property 

Line 321 EA $4,500.00 $1,444,500.00 
12 Install Clean-out at Property line 453 EA $500.00 $226,500.00  
13 Install new Man Hole 1 EA $6,500.00 $6,500.00  
14 Rehab Existing Man Hole 160 EA $1,000.00 $160,000.00  
15 Repair Sub-Aquias Crossing 80 LF $500.00 $40,000.00  
16 Mobilization (10%) 1 LS   $519,709.81  
17 MOT (10%) 1 LS   $519,709.81  

        TOTAL = $6,236,517.75 

 31 



 
Table 4.3  Outline of Proposed Stormwater Improvements 

 
PROJECT TITLE     CG&A PROJECT NO. 
Surfside Drainage 
Improvements      07‐1552   
LOCATION         
Miami‐Dade County, FL          
OWNER           
TOWN OF SURFSIDE          

    CHECKED BY APPROVED BY 

ITEM       
UNIT 

PRICE ESTIMATED 

NO. DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT 
MAT. & 

LAB AMOUNT 
1 Pump Stations 3 EA $750,000.00 $2,250,000.00 
2 Control Structures 8 EA $13,000.00 $104,000 

3 
Remove Existing 
Inlets 20 EA $600.00 $12,000 

4 Manholes 15 EA $6,000.00 $90,000 
5 18 " RCP 4500 LF $45.00 $202,500 
6 Curb Inlets 38 EA $5,500.00 $209,000 
7 Wells 9 EA $50,000.00 $450,000 
8 Manatee Grates 4 EA $525.00 $2,100 
9 Mod. Curb & Gutter 3000 LF $13.00 $39,000 

10 Raing Gauge 3 EA $500.00 $1,500 
  Subtotal = $3,360,100.00 

    
10% 

Mobilization     336,010.00 

        TOTAL 
 $         
3,696,110.00  

 
 
 
 

 32 



 
Figure 4.1  Town of Surfside Sewer Service Area 

 

 33 



0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

Apr-01 Sep-02 Jan-04 May-05 Oct-06 Feb-08 Jul-09 Nov-10

Date

Fl
ow

 (G
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 D
ay

)

Water GPD
Wastewater GPD

 
Figure 4.2  Past Wastewater Use 

(Historically Flows were About 300,000 gpd Less That Water Flows, but are Currently on a 
Large Upswing) 

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

May-05 Oct-06 Feb-08 Jul-09 Nov-10 Apr-12 Aug-13 Dec-14 May-16

Date

Fl
ow

 (g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 d
ay

)

 
Figure 4.3  Projected Wastewater Use 

 34 



0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Date

Fl
ow

 (M
G

D
)

Jan
Feb
Mar
Apr
May 
June
July
Aug
Sept
Oct
Nov 
Dec

 
Figure 4.4  Wastewater Flows Shows Them to be Highest From 

July to October 

 
Figure 4.5  Example of old Orangebrook Pipe in Very Deteriorated 

Condition 

 35 



 
Figure 4.6  Example of Old Orangebrook Pipe in Very 

Deteriorated Condition 

 36 



 
Figure 4.7  Example of Old Cast Iron Service Line in Very 

Deteriorated Condition – Exposed to Salt Water 

 
Figure 4.8  Example of old PVC Service Line – Many are in 

Deteriorated Condition and/or Broken 

 37 



Rain and High Groundwater AffectsRain and High Groundwater Affects
Wastewater Collection SystemWastewater Collection System

Figure 4.9   Potential Points where Infiltration and Inflow enter the system 

RA
IN
FA
LL

(I
N
CH

ES
)

TO
TA
L 
PL
A
N
T 
FL
O
W

(M
G
D
)

8

12

16

80

60

40

0

0

4

20

OCTOBER, 1991 NOVEMBER, 1991

Figure 4.10  Indication of Inflow to the Sewer System Example 
only (Bloetscher, 2009) 

 38 



 
Figure 4.11  Chimney Seal Installed (Courtesy, USSI, Inc) 

 
Figure 4.12  Installation Procedure (Courtesy, USSI, Inc) 

 39 



 
Figure 4.13  LDL Plug Design (Courtesy, USSI, Inc) 

 
Figure 4.14  LDL Plug Installed in Cleanout (Courtesy, USSI, Inc) 

 40 



 
Figure 4.15  Rim/Flange of Manhole (courtesy USSI) 

 
Figure 4.16  Inflow Defender Manhole Rain Dish 

  

 41 



 

 
 
 

Figure 4.17  Stormwater Problem Areas 

 42 



5.0 NEEDS ASSESSMENT 

This section outlines the needs for the water and sewer systems along with options explored to 
resolve the needs.  The recommended projects are outlined with cost estimates.  40 CFR, Part 35, 
Subpart E, Appendix A includes useful life to be used in cost-effectiveness analysis.  Useful life 
applicable to the alternatives in the water facilities plan is as follows: 

• Pipes – 50 to 60 years 
• Plant buildings, tanks, pump stations, etc. – 30 to 50 years (use 30 years) 
• Process equipment – 15 to 20 years (use 15 years) 
• Auxiliary equipment – 10 to 15 years (use 10 years) 

Therefore, based on the above information on useful life for each component of the alternatives, 
the planning period of 10 years, and discount rate of 5 7/8 percent (or 5.875 percent) established 
by EPA for the fiscal year beginning on or after October 1, 2002; cost-effectiveness analysis for 
the different alternatives using EPA’s format.  The recommended projects are outlined with cost 
estimates.  

The following sections outline the proposed program options.  Within each of the following 
sections of the report, the following are presented: the current situation, the potential problems 
with the current situation, the alternatives to solve the problem with cost impacts for each, and a 
recommended solution for each current situation. 

5.1 Water System Needs 
The water is distributed to residents and commercial business by the Town via approximately 11 
miles of cast iron pipe installed in 1938. Primary mains feeding the system run under the Town’s 
streets and vary in size from 6-inch to 16-inches in diameter, which feed three-inch and four-
inch water lines located along the rear property lines. Disrepair and corrosion for over 70 years 
has created a fragile water distribution system that has repetitive breaks, loss of potable water, 
pavement restoration and other expenses. 
 
In accordance with the approved Surfside Comprehensive Plan, the Town’s goals for potable 
water are as follows:  
 

A. Water shall be delivered to users at a pressure no less than 20 pounds per square inch 
(psi) and no greater than 100 psi.  

B. Water quality shall meet all federal, state, and county primary standards for potable 
water.  

C. The level of service (LOS) standard for potable water facilities shall be 155 gallons per 
capita per day.  
 

In order to provide uninterrupted potable water, improve level of service Town-wide, and meet 
ISO fire demands, a water main replacement program has been implemented.   
 

 43 



There is one area of need with the water system:  Replacement of existing water mains and the 
looping lines.   

5.1.1 Water Main Replacement Program  
This program, as envisioned by the Town, replaces the existing galvanized and cast iron 
pipelines.  All pipes are submerged in saltwater for much of the year.  As a result, as noted in 
section 3.3, these pipelines deteriorate in the south Florida groundwater conditions.  The Town 
will replace many of the deteriorated pipelines with 6 or 8-inch pipelines made of PVC C900. 

5.1.1.1 Current Situation 
The Town needs to replace the old, galvanized and cast iron pipelines.  These provide 
insufficient service and are prone to significant leakage. 

5.1.1.2 Problems with Current Situation 
The old pipelines are cast iron and galvanized and leak or break continually.  Cast iron lines are 
in poor conditions throughout the Town.  Replacement will reduce the amount of leakage and 
protect service to the customers in these areas. 

5.1.1.3 Summary of Alternatives 
There are two alternatives – do nothing or fix the problem and reduce unaccounted for water, 
which will improve the Town’s ability to comply with the SFWMD’s water resource limitation 
in a more effective manner.  The do nothing alternative does not meet the Town’s fiscal or 
comprehensive planning needs.  Therefore, because there is a cost to maintaining older, leaky 
pipelines, the recommended alternative is to replace these pipelines with PVC pipe. 

The replacement project provides for the replacement of several miles of water system pipe 
known to be in particularly poor repair.  The replacement program addresses only those existing 
iron water pipes that are believed to be either undersized, corroded, or both.  A replacement 
program is long overdue, including valves and hydrants. Currently, construction documents are 
complete for a replacement of the water mains, meters, service laterals and fire hydrants.  Table 
5.1 outlines the $5.029 million cost for this project.   
 
Table 5.2 outlines a present worth analysis for replacement versus ongoing repair.  It should be 
noted that since the unaccounted for water in the Town is 15%, this exceeds the threshold set by 
SFWMD so the Town needs to take action.  The lowest long-term cost is to pursue the 
replacements as noted in Table 5.2.   
 

 44 



Table 5.1 Estimate of Water System Costs  
 

Water Main Replacement     

PROJECT TITLE: Water Main Replacement Design   CG&A PROJECT NO. 09-2365 
            
LOCATION:          
            
OWNER: Town of Surfside         
            
ESTIMATED BY   Shaun Bamforth CHECKED BY  APPROVED BY 
ITEM           
NO. DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT NET PRICE TOTAL PRICE 

1 8" Gate Valve 170 EA $1,650.00 $280,500.00  
2 Fire Hydrant Assembly 23 EA $2,750.00 $63,250.00  
3 8" x 6" Tee 23 EA $650.00 $14,950.00  
4 8" x 8" Tee 49 EA $700.00 $34,300.00  
5 8" x 8" Cross 5 EA $1,000.00 $5,000.00  
6 8" 90 Degree Bend 16 EA $405.00 $6,480.00  
7 8"- 45 Degree Bend 224 EA $228.00 $51,072.00  
8 8"- 22.5 Degree Bend 4 EA $405.00 $1,620.00  
9 8"- 11.25 Degree Bend 2 EA $405.00 $810.00  

10 8" x 6" Reducer 10 EA $225.00 $2,250.00  
11 8" P.V.C. 900 25594 LF $40.00 $1,023,760.00  
12 6" P.V.C. 900 611 LF $37.50 $22,912.50  
13 Air Release Valves 15 EA $750.00 $11,250.00  
14 BSP 57 EA $500.00 $28,500.00  
15 Proposed Water Service (NIC Meter) 687 EA $1,300.00 $893,100.00  
16 Pipe Plugs 46 EA $250.00 $11,500.00  
17 Mill and Remove Pavement 68251 SY $7.50 $511,882.50  
18 Asphalt - 1st lift 68251 SY $10.00 $682,510.00  
19 Asphalt - 2nd lift 68251 SY $8.00 $546,008.00  
20 Mobilization (10%) 1 LS   $419,165.50  
21 MOT (10%) 1 LS   $419,165.50  

        TOTAL = $5,029,986.00  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 45 



*Assumed 10 breaks/yr at $25,000/break over 50 years @ 3% annual inflation 

Table 5.2  Present Worth – Increasing Operations and Maintenance 
Components Pipe Replacement Do Nothing 

 
Useful Life 

(yrs) Amount ($) 
Useful Life 

(yrs.) Amount ($) 
Pipe Cost 50 $5,029,986.00 50 $       -    
Construction (10%) &   600,000   
Eng’g (12%) Contingencies  
  
TOTAL Constr  $5,629,486  
PW of O, M & R (PWF = 
7.403872) 

  $       -   $ 6,432,000 

Salvage Values  $0  $0
Lost water cost (PW)  $0  $273,750
     
PW = Item a + Item b – Item c  $5,629,486  $ 6,705,750 

** assumes unaccounted for water can be reduced to 7%, $2.50/1000 gallons, 20 years 
 

5.1.2 Recommended Water Project 
Based on the prior sections, it is recommended that the Town pursue replacement of two inch 
pipe and construction of pipe to improve distribution pressure.  This will ensure continued high 
water quality, while solving water supply concerns.  Ongoing upgrades to the water distribution 
should include replacing the remaining 2-inch galvanized water lines and looping the large lines 
that are currently dead-ended or are tied to smaller lines.  Table 5.3 outlines the proposed water 
program. 

Table 5.3  Recommended Water Program 
(with Contingencies) 

Item Cost 
Water Main Replacements  $        5,629,486 
Total  $        5,629,486 

 
5.2 Wastewater Improvements 
There are two distinct areas of need with the sewer system.  The two areas are infiltration and 
inflow correction and lift station upgrades.  Because of the flow issues, these two issues are tied 
together in Surfside.  The I/I program addresses the pipe condition, while the lift stations 
upgrades will permit more control of the system and reduce SSOs.   

5.2.1 Infiltration/Inflow Reduction 
The Town’s sanitary sewer system is interconnected with the Miami-Dade County Water and 
Sewer Department (MDWASD) system; however, Surfside maintains its own sewer collection 
system and two pumping stations.  By agreement, the Town of Surfside and Bal Harbour share a 

 46 



sanitary force main that connects to the City of Miami Beach transmission system.  The tri-party 
agreement provides for the transmission of sewage via force mains to the MDWASD system and 
eventually to the treatment plant and disposal. 
 
The Town’s sanitary sewer collection system failed to meet the Miami-Dade County (MDCC) 
Infiltration/Inflow (I/I) standards and exceeded the pump station run time limits, which prompted 
violation notices commencing in 1983.  The nonconformance with the MDCC Section 24-42.2 
resulted with a Consent Agreement that required the Town to complete the Sanitary Sewer 
Evaluation Study (SSES).   The Sewer Rehabilitation Plan was broken into three phases to bring 
the Town into compliance with the mandates from EPA, MDCC, and DERM. 
 
Phase I: EPA has established infiltration criteria depending on the footage of collection sewer in 
the area as follows: 

Table 5.4  EPA Infiltration Allowance 
Allowance Range (gpd/in-mile) Sewage Footage (ft) 

2,000-3,000 > 100,000 
3,000-5,000 50,000-100,000 
5,000-8,000 1,000-50,000 

 
The criteria in the table are used as a primary indicator for the assessment and classification of 
collection system infiltration.  In 1993, the State of Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection (DEP) and Miami-Dade County entered into a Settlement Agreement.  The 
Agreement required that a Sewer System Evaluation Survey (SSES) be conducted on any 
collection basin with a night flow in excess of 10 gpm per mile of gravity sewer.  This newly 
developed criterion is used as a secondary requirement in prioritization. 

Areas of the Town of Surfside’s sewer system have limited infiltration and inflow information.  
Due to the current need for infiltration and inflow, a comprehensive program was proposed to be 
undertaken in two phases.  Phase I was completed by placing full dish gaskets on all manhole 
openings.  In addition, any rain water leaders found to be attached to the sewer lines were 
disconnected from the sanitary sewer system.   

Phase II: Phase II includes the investigating sewer problems using video, smoke testing and 
other techniques to determine the sources of infiltration / inflow.  All broken sanitary lines will 
be repaired or lined, as determined by the analysis.  All service laterals are planned to be either 
replaced or lined to reduce infiltration of ground water. Severely deteriorated manholes will be 
sealed with a “Sewpercoat” system or full liner to reduce infiltration. Costs and unit prices have 
been established for lining the moderately cracked pipes and point repairs for the broken pipes. 
Bidding of the repairs is expected this year for lining the existing sanitary lines and manholes. To 
avoid a construction moratorium, the Town is currently coordinating with the Florida 
Department of Transportation and their engineering consultant R. Aleman and Associates to 
determine Harding and Collins overlay impacts to sanitary sewer lining/replacement.  
 
Phase IIa construction will include the following associated with the manholes: 

 47 



• Inspection  and repair of all sanitary sewer manholes, including repair of benches 
in poor condition or exhibiting substantial leakage 

• Repair of manhole walls in poor condition or exhibiting substantial leakage 
• Repair/sealing of chimneys in all manholes to reduce infiltration from the street 

during flooding events (see Figures 4.10 and 4.11) 
• Installation of dishes in all manholes to prevent infiltration (see Figures 4.14 and 

4.15) 
• While opening the manholes, smoke testing of all section of pipe, with 

identification of sewer system leaks, including those on private property (via 
location of smoke on private property), and immediate installation of cleanout and 
LDL plugs where manholes in the public right-of-way or other portion of the 
utility’s system is damaged (Figure 4.12 and 4.13) 

• Low flow inspection event to identify sections to test.  

Table 5.5 outlines the cost for these improvements.  

Table 5.5  Phase IIa Infiltration and Inflow Costs 

Item Units 
Unit 
Cost Total Cost 

Manhole inspection, seal, dish and ancillary 
work 110 $450.00 $49,500 
Sealing of Manholes 10 $250.00 $2,500 
Bench Repairs 5 $50.00 $250 
 
Smoke Testing and Report 
Preparation 20,000 $0.30 $6,000 
Cleanout Caps 100 $100.00 $10,000 
LDL Plugs 100 $125.00 $12,500 
After Hours Observations LS  $1,000 
Change Order Contingency (not 

$50,000 $50,000 guaranteed  to Contractor) 
Total    $131,750 

 
Portions of this work are complete.  To further protect the current investments, the Town needs 
to monitor, televise and line areas of the Town that develop leaks.  This is the Phase II 
infiltration/inflow reduction. Phase II will include: 

• Televising the 10-15% of segments identified in the low flow inspection event 
• Identification of breaks  
• Point repairs 
• Lining of piping 
• Re-televising to insure repairs are made 

 

 48 



A program for televising, lining, point repairs is estimated at about $6.23 million based on 
experience elsewhere.  The low flow event has been shown to focus the areas for tv and lining to 
10-15% of the system as opposed to the full sanitary sewer system.    

In addition inflow and infiltration reduction is more cost effective than treating excess 
wastewater, building additional plant capacity and/or dealing with fines for SSOs.  Table 5.6 
outlines an example comparison between the traditional and Phase II proposed program resulting 
from Phase I.  Table 5.7 outlines the present worth.  The recommended alternative forma  cost 
perspective is to fix the sewer system.  

 

Table 5.6  Outline of Proposed Sanitary Sewer Improvements 
 

PROJECT TITLE: Sewer Lining and Replacement Project   
CG&A PROJECT NO. 09-
2365 

OWNER: Town of Surfside         
ESTIMATED BY   Shaun Bamforth CHECKED BY  APPROVED BY 
ITE
M           

NO. DESCRIPTION 
QUANTI

TY UNIT 
NET 

PRICE 
TOTAL 
PRICE 

1 Clean and TV existing system 6725 LF $8.00 $53,800.00  
2 Line 8" Sewer 29159 LF $34.00 $991,406.00  
3 Line 10" Sewer 11824 LF $36.00 $425,664.00  
4 Line 12" Sewer 1412 LF $41.50 $58,598.00  
5 Line 15" Sewer 1716 LF $52.50 $90,090.00  
6 Reconstruct 8" Sewer (SDR 35) 4445 LF $50.00 $222,273.67  
7 Reconstruct 10" Sewer (SDR 35) 1803 LF $55.00 $99,145.38  
8 Reconstruct 12" Sewer (SDR 35) 215 LF $60.00 $12,916.10  
9 Reconstruct 15" Sewer (SDR 35) 262 LF $65.00 $17,004.98  

10 Line Lateral from main to property line 374 EA $3,750.00 $1,402,500.00 
11 Replace Lateral from Main to Property 

Line 321 EA $4,500.00 $1,444,500.00 
12 Install Clean-out at Property line 453 EA $500.00 $226,500.00  
13 Install new Man Hole 1 EA $6,500.00 $6,500.00  
14 Rehab Existing Man Hole 160 EA $1,000.00 $160,000.00  
15 Repair Sub-Aquias Crossing 80 LF $500.00 $40,000.00  
16 Mobilization (10%) 1 LS   $519,709.81  
17 MOT (10%) 1 LS   $519,709.81  

        TOTAL = $6,236,517.75 
 
 
  

 49 



Table 5.7  Present Worth – Increasing Operations and Maintenance 
Components Pipe Repair Do Nothing 

  
Useful Life 

(yrs) Amount ($) 
Useful Life 

(yrs.) Amount ($)
Pipe Cost 50 $6,236,517 50 $       -   
Construction (10%) &   446,192    
Eng’g (12%) 
Contingencies  

 

Operating Costs (Excess 
flows)  

 $     
2,357,700  

TOTAL Constr $6,682,709  
Debt  $328,844   
PW of O, M & R (6.125%)  

$6,353,865 
est inc/yr = 
3% $5,354,769 

Salvage Values $0 $0 
    
PW = Item a + Item b – 
Item c 

  
$6,353,865

  
$7,354,769 

 

 

An ongoing appropriation for infiltration and inflow repair should be included in each annual 
budget in the future so that massive efforts such as that anticipated here will not be required in 
the future. 

Phase III: Phase III will consist of renovating the existing pump stations and installation of 
emergency generators to bring the system back into compliance with the current law, codes and 
Consent Decree.  There are 2 lift stations serving the Town.  There are limited controls and the 
stations are older.  Some rehabilitation and telemetry for tracking data is important.  Identifying 
and tracking problem areas is best accomplished with telemetry.  The cost per station varies 
between $20,000 and $100,000 per station.  Two options exist; the Town could either complete 
the repairs, or leave the system as is.  Leaving the system as is does not keep with the goals of 
the Town and likely causes the Town to incur, periodic large inflow occurrences in the system.   
This is not in keeping with the goals of the Town and likely causes the Town to incur, periodic 
large inflow occurrences in the system.  The cost to retrofit and telemeterize the system is under 
$200,000, but the costs are highly dependent on the findings of the control boxes at the lift 
stations.  The need to monitor the system is especially important given the consent order.  These 
should be considered as contingency items in the lining bid.   
 

5.2.2 Wastewater Program 
Based on the prior sections 5.2.1 and 5.2.2, it is recommended that the Town pursue a program 
that involves the telemetry, lift station rehab, infiltration and inflow and some force main 
additions.  Table 5.8 outlines the proposed waste water program. 

 

 50 



 

Table 5.8 Recommended Wastewater Program 

Item Cost 
Infiltration/Inflow/Piping upgrades    $131,750  
Lift Stations and Telemetry      $1,500,000 
Lining Pipe          $4,604,767 

Total  
$6,236,517 

 
 
5.3 Stormwater Program 
Figure 4.17 showed that the west side of the Town is low lying.   The proposed stormwater 
project consists of retrofitting three of the Town’s outfall pipes to reduce pollutants and fresh 
water entering Biscayne Bay.  The proposed facilities at each location will consist of a 
stormwater pump station which pumps water into a new drainage wells.  In order to address 
pollution concerns for a Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) drainage well 
permit, the Town will install Nutrient Separating Baffle Boxes upstream of the pump station to 
provide treatment before the runoff enters the groundwater. 
 
The Town will address a long-term concern for all residents of the Town, who have complained 
to the Town for at least a decade about water backing into the streets and poor water quality in 
the adjacent Biscayne Bay along the Town’s shores.  The project directly addresses The Trust for 
Public Land’s Biscayne Bay Accessibility report, and supports the SFWMD’s Biscayne Bay 
Partnership Initiative (BBPI). 
 
The project will be funded through a cost share program grant with the FDEP contributing 
$873,500 and the balance of $2.82 million funded with a debt serviced loan.  Surveying, 
Engineering design, FDEP / DERM permitting, grant administration and public educations are 
complete for this project. 
 
The existing catch basins and stormwater collection system and the pipes have been cleaned and 
an atlas showing each of the improvements, condition and recommendations has been created to 
maintain the system on a yearly basis as required by the National Pollution Discharge 
Elimination System Permit.  Repairs and replacement program will coincide with the Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection Stormwater project and grants will augment the CIP as 
necessary.   
Figure 5.1 shows that most of the town is in the flood plain.  The current drainage system does 
not work properly leading to the potential for flooding, damage to the utility system and property 
damage.  The Town has two options – do nothing or correct the problem.  The cost to do nothing 
cannot be measured.  The cost to correct the problem is $3.69 million as shown in Table 5.9. 

  

 51 



Table 5.9 Stormwater Improvements 
 
PROJECT TITLE     CG&A PROJECT NO. 
Surfside Drainage 
Improvements      07‐1552   
LOCATION         
Miami‐Dade County, FL          
OWNER           
TOWN OF SURFSIDE          

    CHECKED BY APPROVED BY 

ITEM       
UNIT 

PRICE ESTIMATED 

NO. DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT 
MAT. & 

LAB AMOUNT 
1 Pump Stations 3 EA $750,000.00 $2,250,000.00 
2 Control Structures 8 EA $13,000.00 $104,000 

3 
Remove Existing 
Inlets 20 EA $600.00 $12,000 

4 Manholes 15 EA $6,000.00 $90,000 
5 18 " RCP 4500 LF $45.00 $202,500 
6 Curb Inlets 38 EA $5,500.00 $209,000 
7 Wells 9 EA $50,000.00 $450,000 
8 Manatee Grates 4 EA $525.00 $2,100 
9 Mod. Curb & Gutter 3000 LF $13.00 $39,000 

10 Raing Gauge 3 EA $500.00 $1,500 
  Subtotal = $3,360,100.00 

    
10% 

Mobilization     336,010.00 

        TOTAL 
 $         
3,696,110.00  

 
 
There are three options, although two are similar.  The first is do nothing which will continue to 
damage Town and private infrastructure.  An estimate of this cost is not available because the 
potential impacts are significant but will vary by storm characteristics (excluding hurricanes 
which are completely different).  The other two options deal with discharge.  The Town’s 
discharge goes to either wells or Biscayne Bay.   The outfalls will need significant treatment 
prior to discharge which is both costly and unlikely to be successful.  As a result, the proposed 
program is preferred and the capital program is as outlined in Table 5.11. 
  

 52 



Table 5.10  Comparison of Stormwater Improvement Options 
 

Item 
Do 

nothing Outfall Well 
Piping 0 $2,321,190.00 $3,196,110  
Wells 0 $0.00 $500,000  
Treatment 0 $1,500,000.00 included 
Outfall 0 0 
Damage unknown limited limited 
Total 20,000 $3,821,190.00 $3,696,110 

 
 

Table 5.11 Recommended Stormwater Program 

Item Cost 
Stormwater Improvements and Pump Stations $3,696,110 

Total  
$3,696,110 

 
 
 
5.4 Infrastructure Program 
Recommendations about major infrastructure requirements are as follows: 

WATER 
• Replace older water mains 

STORMWATER 
• Install wells and upgrade stormwater system 

SEWER 
• Infiltration/inflow upgrades 
• Telemetry pump station rehabilitation 

5.5 Permits Required 
The majority of the projects planned for the next 10 years (and longer) will involve rehabilitation 
or replacement of existing infrastructure.  All water line installations, including replacement 
lines, will require Miami-Dade County Health Department permits that will be secured at the 
time of design (prior to construction).  This will be done on a project-by-project basis. 

Permits will also be required for lift station upgrades.  No permits are required for the 
infiltration/inflow projects. 

 53 



5.6 Environmental Assessment 
The Town of Surfside is embarking upon a major capital program to upgrade its existing 
facilities.  The majority of the improvements are driven by regulatory requirements, new 
demands and facility age.  The proposed water, sewer and stormwater expenditures over the next 
10 years are approximately $16 million and much of this money may be requested from SRF 
loans.  Implementation of all of the proposed expenditures and loans from the SRF Program is 
not mandatory.  The actual expenditures and loan amounts will depend upon financial needs.  
The program is intended to ensure that the Town meets its contractual obligations to its existing 
customers over the planning period, and should permit the Town to meet all regulatory 
requirements currently in effect or reasonably anticipated in the future.   

This section outlines the environmental review of the major components of the program where 
SRF loans are proposed.  To summarize the findings herein, the following should be noted: 

• All of the projects proposed to be in sites currently developed, road right-of-ways 
or Town owned, cleared property  

• All proposed areas for construction have been previously disturbed 
• There are no known archaeological or historical sites in any of the project areas 

and no undisturbed areas that might uncover currently unknown archaeological or 
historical sites 

• There are no, known wetland, terrestrial, environmentally sensitive or biological 
impacts in any of the project areas.  All the sites planned for improvements have 
previously been disturbed, and exist in an urban setting where wetland, terrestrial, 
biological or environmentally sensitive impacts would not occur as a result of 
prior disturbance.   

With regard to socio-economic interests, the following summarize the impact of the projects: 

• There is limited surface water in the Town of Surfside.  For the water system, no 
surface water impacts are expected.  On the sewer side, pursuit of infiltration and 
inflow programs will limit the potential for sewer overflows to surface waters 

• Groundwater impacts are minimal.  Small diameter water lines are old and 
undersized.  They leak because they are under pressure, but groundwater impacts 
are not an issue.  Groundwater will tend to flow into the sanitary sewer system, 
not out of the system.   

• Air quality will not be affected by any project contemplated herein. 
• Noise impacts will not occur as a result of any project contemplated herein, 

although some limited noise may occur during construction. 
• Aesthetics – failure to repair leaks in a timely manner provides the appearance of 

failure to maintain the system adequately.  Pursuit of the program anticipated 
herein would maintain integrity of the system and have no aesthetic impact. 

• Economic - Construction would maintain the current economy.  Rates and fees 
are, or will be in place to cover the facility costs.  Leaks and subsequent repairs 
will hamper normal traffic patterns.  Addressing infiltration and inflow will help 
limit future increases in sewer bills and reduce any potential for fines to be levied 
against the Town. 

 54 



• Public Health - Improved water quality would result from the improvements to 
the water plant contemplated herein.  New water lines will improve service and 
reduce the likelihood of service interruptions and will provide storage.  On the 
sewer side, pursuing and ongoing infiltration and inflow and lift station 
maintenance program will treat and monitor the system for excessive infiltration 
and inflow which may adversely affect public health due to higher risk of 
untreated sewage spills without rehabilitation of existing facilities and increase 
sewer charges to residents. 

• Cultural – no impacts are expected 
• Transportation - Minor inconvenience during construction on-site and a 

temporary increase in traffic on roads into sites is expected, but these would likely 
be less in the long-term than impacts from repeated repairs of old lines.  Potential 
for damage to pavements and alleys, which may damage private property as a 
result of excessive leakage of old, small pipes that flood streets and gutters, will 
be eliminated with the planned program. 

• Energy – no impacts are expected 

Detail of the impacts for each element of the proposed plan are found in the following sections.  
One aspect remains – flood plains.  Figure 5.1 shows the flood plain system in Surfside.  All of 
Surfside is located in the high velocity hurricane storm surge areas.   

 

 

 55 



 
Figure 5.1  Flood Plain Map for the Town of Surfside 

Figure 5.2 Proposed Water System Improvements 
 To be inserted in FINAL document submitted to FDEP 

Available at Town Hall upon request and will be inserted in the final document submitted 
to FDEP 

 
Figure 5.3 Proposed Sewer System Improvements 
 To be inserted in FINAL document submitted to FDEP 

Available at Town Hall upon request and will be inserted in the final document submitted 
to FDEP 

 
Figure 5.4 Proposed Stormwater System Improvements 
 To be inserted in FINAL document submitted to FDEP 

Available at Town Hall upon request and will be inserted in the final document submitted 
to FDEP 

 

 56 



6.0 FINANCIAL ASSESSMENT 

Historically, the utility industry has shown dedication to building and maintaining drainage 
systems to provide high quality drainage service to its customers.  The rapidly changing 
regulatory framework has forced utilities to investigate new water management strategies that 
pursue demand mitigation alternatives, and include treatment capability to meet ecosystem 
demands as well as urban runoff demands.  The Town of Surfside has completed a 
comprehensive evaluation of its water and sewer system, to determine where needs exist so that 
improvements can be made.  The Town has identified the State Revolving Fund loan program as 
a source of funding for necessary improvements.  Determining how these new projects will be 
integrated into the finances of the utility system has been completed in a partial 2010 Rate Study 
prepared by TischlerBise. 

Traditionally, utilities have used water volumes and pricing as a means to recover costs by 
charging users of a specific type in accordance with the cost of serving that type of user, which is 
both effective and equitable.  But pricing can also work to reduce demand by providing an 
incentive for customers to manage water use more carefully. 

6.1 Financial Basis of the Utility 
Utility systems charge a variety of rates, fees and charges for service.  These include service 
charges, assessments and miscellaneous fees such as meter re-reads, connection fees, late 
payments and backflow testing.  Each of these fees should have a basis for the charge generally 
consistent with the financial policy of the system.  Only two fees have major legal constraints – 
impact fees and assessments. 

A utility’s rates not only must be reasonable, they must be non-discriminatory, although different 
user-classes can be charged differently provided a valid rationale exists for the difference.  
Different user classes may be charged different rates if the rates can be justified.  For example, a 
distinction can be made in some instances between user classes, i.e., residential customers being 
charged differently than industrial or commercial customers.   

Periodic charges for service are the costs collected on a regular basis from existing customers for 
the amount of service they receive.  Periodic service charges are usually broken down into two 
portions - availability charges and volumetric charges.  Availability charges are the fixed portion 
of the bill which is generally based on equivalent residential connections (ERCs), meter size or 
some mixture of the two.  The volumetric charge is based on the amount of water consumed by 
the customer as determined from meter reading.  Due care must be exercised to avoid under-
collection of fees with the imposition of any rate collection method. 

6.1.1 Availability Charges 
The fixed-fee portion of the service charge is collected from every customer regardless of 
whether or not there is any usage at the address.  This practice is intended to allow the utility to 
bill customers where service is available, because there is a cost for having the service available 
to the customer’s property.  One obvious and consistent charge encountered is that of meter 
reading and sending out the water bills.  As a result, this cost should always be included in the 
fixed portion of the bill; likewise, debt service continues to occur whether or not the customer 

 57 



uses the system.  Because the repayment of debt is important in order to protect the financial 
position of the utility, debt is a high priority in the budgeting process and as a result, revenues to 
cover debt are typically included in the availability charge.  This practice is also a safeguard in 
case there is catastrophic facility damage due to storms or other natural disasters; the availability 
charges continue to accrue to the system to enable the utility to pay its debt, even though the 
service is not being used. 

Utilities consider a number of pricing objectives when a rate structure is being selected.  These 
objectives include: 

1. Financial Sufficiency - generating sufficient revenues to recover operating and capital 
costs; 

2. Conservation - encouraging customers to make efficient use of scarce water resources 
through costs; 

3. Equity - charging customers or customer classes in proportion to the costs of providing 
service to customer groups; 

4. Implementation - having the capability to implement the rate structure efficiently without 
incurring unreasonable costs associated with reprogramming, procedures modification, 
and redesigning of forms; 

5. Compliance with appropriate legal authorities – being consistent with existing local, 
state, and federal ordinances, laws, and regulations; 

6. Effect on customer classes - minimizing negative financial effects on utility customers; 
and 

7. Long-term rate stability - producing rates that are reasonably constant from year to year. 

The public can best be served by a utility that is a self-sustaining enterprise adequately financed 
with rates based on sound, established engineering and economic principles.  Water rates 
typically consist of operating and capital costs.  Examples of operating costs include salaries, 
electricity, chemicals, and other recurring expenses.  The capital portion typically includes 
contributions from current revenues, new borrowed funds and contributions for repairs and 
replacements.  Debt service includes payments on any outstanding borrowing.  Repayment of 
SRF loans are included here. 

All of the financing starts with the utility’s “cash registers” – the meters.  This program requires 
that the utility install a meter to record water consumption for each customer and bill for water 
use based on metered consumption.  The alternative is to bill customers on a flat rate regardless 
of water consumption.  Metering provides an incentive for customers to use water wisely.  User 
charges are then based on these meter readings to meet certain objectives.  A number of different 
rate structures are available and all were considered in the 2010 TischlerBise rate study.  These 
include the following: 

Uniform Volume Rates 

A uniform-volume water rate is one in which all water use is charged at the same rate to 
all metered units, regardless of consumption.  Sewer consumption is often based directly 
on water usage up to a specified level (usually the average household indoor use 
calculated for the utility). 

 58 



Inverted Block Rates 

Under this alternative, rates increase for progressively larger volumes of water use.  As a 
result, larger-volume customers pay a progressively higher average rate for increased 
water use.  The usual reason for using an inverted block rate structure is to offer financial 
incentives for reducing water use.  Note that the South Florida Water Management 
District has rules requiring utilities to utilize this rate structure to reduce water use during 
restrictions. 

Revenue Stability and Cost-of-Service-Based 

Every utility has certain costs that must be funded regardless of water consumption 
amounts.  These costs are fixed and typically do not fluctuate.  If a customer does not use 
any water during a billing period, there are still costs associated for past use and future 
service availability.  These items include but are not limited to capital replacement for 
past use, maintenance of assets to provide water in the future, debt service, and customer 
service. A fixed charge system without minimum water allotments ensures the utility’s 
fixed costs will still be met while creating a more equitable billing system. 

Rate schedules can be compiled by customer class to establish a separate rate structure or 
schedule of charges for each group (or class) of customer served by the utility.  A rate structure 
applicable to all classes of customers cannot reflect the cost of service for any particular 
customer group.  By establishing rates by class, however, there is a more direct recovery of cost 
from each customer group.  Since the rates can better reflect cost differences among the various 
classes, customers in each class are made aware of the cost of each unit of water consumed.  The 
major difficulty in establishing a rate schedule is the identification of the various classes and the 
assignment of each customer appropriately. 

6.2 Water, Sewer and Stormwater Systems 
As the Town of Surfside began its planning process for the water and sewer utility, this section is 
a planning tool to make relative funding decisions.  A full rate study was completed by 
TichlerBise in 2010 – See Appendix B).  Operating expenses for the utility in 2009, including 
chemicals and electricity use accounts for 36 percent on the water-side, and 47 percent on the 
wastewater side of the total $4.6 million budget.  Chemicals and electricity are 13% of the total 
operations, which is typical for water systems.  Salaries and benefits account for only 25% of 
operations.  Renewal and replacement funding does not comprise a significant part of the total.  
Debt service is minimal – mostly equipment.  Debt has not been utilized to fund water and 
wastewater system improvements, line replacements or major repairs. 

The stormwater system is funded through Stormwater Utility which utilizes a monthly fee per 
Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) to fund the projects. 

6.3 Methodology 
Multi-year financial forecasts and financial plans are common tools in business.  Most of the 
major private enterprises project sales and expenditure levels at least five years, and many times 
10 to 20 years, in advance.  However, this tool is seldom used in a public sector due to the nature 
of public enterprises - most do not “sell” a tangible product; they provide services such as police 

 59 



protection, fire protection and recreational services.  However, as tax revenue sources are 
exhausted, local governing bodies have begun to set up many municipal departments as 
enterprise funds to accommodate the establishment of fees for the service.  Municipal water and 
sewer utilities have extensive experience using financial forecasts and plans like private sector 
businesses for their enterprises as many governments separated their water and sewer utilities 
years ago as a part of the federal grant process. 

Governmental expenditures are subject to changes in the statutes, case law, sound financial 
practice, competitiveness between public entities, the political process and group decision-
making.  Many public entities rely on determining revenues, and afterward planning 
expenditures to remain within the revenue projections, including capital items, which “fit in.”  
This practice can lead to the deferral of needed capital expenditures or insufficiency in 
maintenance obligations, since many capital expenditures must be planned years in advance.  
The consequences of these capital items not coming on-line at the appropriate time may subject 
the utility to excessive maintenance costs, lawsuits or failures in providing service. 

More progressive utilities today project expenditures, including long-term capital allocations, a 
practice that causes the revenue needs become clearer from year to year.  Projected shortfalls can 
be planned for ahead of time, and capital expenditures can be scheduled and completed at the 
necessary time.  Projecting capital expenditures promotes efficient operations, as well as being 
politically expedient, since projects are budgeted and built on schedule - when promised and 
when necessary to continue operations and meet community needs and growth patterns.  This 
philosophy is in part responsible for portions of the Florida Growth Management Act of 1985, 
which states that infrastructure must be in place at the time growth demands it. 

The current analysis follows a similar, albeit limited, protocol as the Town’s water and sewer 
rate study conducted by other rate professionals.    Expenses in years through 2015 tie directly to 
the budget documents (budgeted or actual expenditures).  Projections were made for the period 
ending in FY 2010, although the out-year projections should be viewed with some skepticism 
due to uncertainty in projecting out so many years. The rates study is outlined in Appendix B. 

The next task was to evaluate revenues.  The current revenues are shown in the rate ordinance in 
Appendix C.  The 2010 rate study recommended a series of rate increases, starting in 2011 fiscal 
year.  Therefore, current ratepayers are the only source for repayment of any debt as they are the 
benefactors of the improvements.  It would appear that the proposed debt service would fit 
within the Town’s current revenues projects (see Table 6.1) 

  

 60 



 

Table 6.1 

Demonstration that Projected Debt Fits into Current Rate Projections for the Town of Surfside 

(assumes all Debt SRF debt at roughly 3% interest) 

Item 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Operating Revenues
User Fees - Water 1,540,201$     1,621,254$       1,706,572$       1,779,272$        1,855,069$       
User Fees - Sewer 1,518,999$     1,769,120$       1,897,691$       1,887,557$        2102678
Connection Fees 1,200$             1,200$              1,200$              1,200$               1,200$              
Interest Income 2,128$             2,128$              2,128$              2,128$               2,128$              
Non-OP/Rate Stabilization
Other Revenues 1,760$             1,760$              1,760$              1,760$               1,760$              
Misc. 4,433$             4,433$              4,433$              4,433$               4,433$              

TOTAL 3,068,721$     3,399,895$       3,613,784$       3,676,350$        3,967,268$       

Operating Expenses 2,096,698$     2,219,535$       2,451,950$       2,714,467$        3,011,220$       

Net Revenues 972,023$        1,180,360$       1,161,834$       961,883$           956,048$          

Debt Service (Excl SRF Loans)

Debt Service (SRF Loan, -$                -$                  -$                  -$                   -$                  
  incl coverage) 

Total Ex. Debt -$                -$                  -$                  -$                   -$                  

Proj Future Debt -$                -$                   
Non-SRF Loans)

Projected SRF Loan Debt 757,100$        757,100$          757,100$          757,100$           757,100$          
(Incl coverage)

New Debt 757,100$        757,100$          757,100$          757,100$           757,100$          

NET 214,923$        423,260$          404,734$          204,783$           198,948$          

 

 

 61 



7.0 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Public participation in the Town’s planning efforts began in 2009 when the Town Manager, 
Public Works Director and the Town’s consultants began discussing a comprehensive look at the 
utility system.  From this plan, a decision was made to preserve the Town’s ability to apply for 
SRF funds and to develop this facilities planning document. 

For this facilities plan, a public meeting was advertised in the Miami Herald on January 30, 2011 
and a public meeting was held on February 8, 2011 at Town Hall at 7:00 p.m.  The issues 
covered included the proposed improvements and costs, the proposed use of SRF funds to fund 
the improvements, the comparative options and the impact of doing or not doing the 
improvements.  The following support documents for the meeting are included under separate 
cover: 

• Advertisement 
• Agenda 
• Presentation slides 
• Minutes 
• Resolution 

 62 



8.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Town of Surfside is well situated for upgrade of its water and sewer utility systems.  To 
meet the continuing regulatory needs and demands of the residents for improved service, the 
projects identified should be pursed as the capital improvement program for the utility systems.  
The major improvements are: 

• Water main replacement and pipe looping 
• Infiltration/inflow upgrades 
• Telemetry pump station rehabilitation 

Borrowing of funds can be accomplished at current SRF interest rate from the State Revolving 
Fund loan programs, commercial borrowing, or a combination of the two.  There are also grants 
available which have been secured or are in the application stage.  

The following are the findings of the water, wastewater and stormwater system: 

• The facilities are well operated 
• Leakage on the water system will become reasonable when the project is 

complete 
• Condition of the water lines is poor, noting that two (2) inch galvanized pipelines 

need to be replaced 
• Infiltration and inflow correction is needed.  Reduction in inflow will address a 

current consent agreement with Miami-Dade County 
• Telemeterizing lift stations will permit the Town to have greater control over the 

collection system  
• Stormwater improvements are needed in an number of places 

The amount that needs to be borrowed is approximately $16 million assuming all of these 
projects are constructed at one time.  The State of Florida’s SRF program provides low interest 
loan monies to finance the cost of construction of publicly owned water, wastewater and 
stormwater facilities.  Each year FDEP has developed an annual priority list of projects to be 
funded, based on need, health hazards, readiness to proceed, costs and State objectives (SWIM 
program, etc.).  Each year the Florida Legislature and the United States Congress must 
appropriate funds for capitalization of the SRF program.  The Legislature provides a 20 percent 
match to the proposed federal funds. 

Borrowing of funds can be accomplished at approximately 3 percent interest from the State 
Revolving Fund loan program.  Authority for the program is found in Rule Chapter 62-503 and 
62-504 of the Florida Administrative Code.  The Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection (FDEP) is charged with implementing the program.  Generally any local government 
entity, which has jurisdiction over the collection, transmission, treatment, storage or disposal of 
wastewater, is eligible to apply for SRF loans.  The projects for wastewater must be associated 
with domestic wastewater on the public system, including treatment plants, collection systems, 
transmission lines, storage, disposal alternatives (or changes thereto), reclaimed water use or 
similar projects.  The same applies for water and stormwater.  Rate increases will be required to 
meet operations needs as well as new debt. 

 63 



 64 

The rule-based notices are as follows: 

• Requests for inclusion (RFI) must be submitted for all projects contemplated for 
placement on the pre-construction list (old target date was February 15, but these 
are now accepted throughout the year)  - this is done each fiscal year when design 
is ongoing and a good cost estimate is in hand 

• Readiness to proceed requirements must be complete (i.e. design complete, 
permits in hand) and submitted for all projects contemplated for placement on the 
Construction loan list (old target date was April 15, but these are now accepted 
throughout the year) – RFI submitted when plans and permits are in hand 

• FDEP must review the plans and issue a letter indicating they are acceptable to 
the program (pro forma - a week) 

• Approval of Construction Fundable Priority List (from which construction loans 
are made) occurs 45-60 days after the readiness to proceed documents are 
submitted (this notice comes from FDEP, and the Town can start work earlier if 
FDEP gives the ok) 

• After bidding, FDEP must review the bids and issue a letter indicating they are 
acceptable to the program (pro forma as well – a week) 

• Loans must be executed for a given project within 9 months of approval 

 

Table 8.1  Five Year Capital Plan 

 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 TOTAL 5 Yrs

Water  $4,241,200   $1,417,000  $5,658,200 
SS  $3,987,100   $1,049,123  $200,000   $5,236,223 
SW  $1,353,442   $3,518,703  $4,872,145 

Annual 
Total  $9,581,742   $5,984,826   $               ‐     $               ‐    $200,000   $15,766,568 

 



Page 134

deastman
Typewritten Text
9A



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139

deastman
Typewritten Text
9B



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169

deastman
Typewritten Text
9C



Page 170



Page 171

deastman
Typewritten Text
9D



Page 172



Page 173

deastman
Typewritten Text
9E



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176

deastman
Typewritten Text
9F



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179

deastman
Typewritten Text
9G



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192

deastman
Typewritten Text
9H



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216

deastman
Typewritten Text
9I



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219


	2-8-11 Town Commission Agenda
	WSD Plan of Finance Presentation
	December, 2010 Commission Minutes
	Reso - Unsafe Structures
	Budget to Actual Summary
	Town Managers Points of Light Report
	Town Attorney's Report 
	Projects Progress Report
	Ord - Outside Employment sec read
	Ord - Curb cuts - sec read
	Ord - first read - boat storage
	Reso - copier lease
	Reso - prequalification shortlist infrastructure rehab
	Reso - Infrastructure Rehab Project Public Meeting
	Reso - Bottle Bill VM Graubart
	Five Year Financial Forecast 
	Land Acquisition of Town Parcels So of Town Hall
	Acquisition of 9333 Harding Ave
	Beach Dune Maintenance
	Battery Recycling Station
	Budget High Level Direction
	EWM Real Estate Analysis of Sales Valuations in the Town of Surfside
	Sustainable Initiatives



